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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I am Gale

          3  Brewer, City Council Member, and Chair of the

          4  Committee on Technology in Government.

          5                 I'm sorry we started a little late.

          6  My colleagues were busily talking about very

          7  important issues in another committee.

          8                 So, we're ready to get started now,

          9  and I'm very honored to be joined by two members;

         10  Council Member Letitia James from Brooklyn, and

         11  Council Member James Sanders from Queens, and I know

         12  that Council Member, the great man, Council Member

         13  Oliver Koppell is around.  He went out for a minute.

         14  So, he'll be in here in a minute.  He was chairing

         15  the previous committee.

         16                 So without further ado, because I

         17  know we're a bit late, we're going to get started

         18  with a short intro, which is part of our powerpoint,

         19  and it's much thanks to Colleen Pagter, who is the

         20  Policy Analyst for the Committee, and Jeff Baker

         21  who's counsel that we're able to pull this off, as

         22  well as Bruce Lye (phonetic), whom I think many of

         23  you know who's in our office, and knowledgeable on

         24  this topic.

         25                 So obviously, we're having an
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          2  oversight hearing today in the Committee.  We're

          3  talking about Net Neutrality, also known as Network

          4  Neutrality, and some discussion to protect the

          5  Internet, and we're talking specifically about Reso.

          6  Number 712, as I am sure you know.

          7                 I think we all believe that the

          8  Internet was created to be an open network, giving

          9  consumers choices over Internet activities.  That

         10  seems like a very non- plus statement, but in order

         11  to discuss Net Neutrality, you have to say that

         12  first it was designed as an end- to- end network

         13  system, which means a network passes information

         14  between the end users, without interference from the

         15  network provider, a very important proviso. Internet

         16  Protocol also emerged with the design of the

         17  Internet as a way to separate the network providers

         18  from the services that run on the network.

         19                 About 40 years ago, the Federal

         20  Communications Commission, also known as FCC,

         21  decided that companies providing communication

         22  services would not interfere with or discriminate

         23  against information services, a very important

         24  distinction.

         25                 In 2002, the FCC tried to take away
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          2  these nondiscrimination protections and the decision

          3  eventually ended up in the Supreme Court in 2005, in

          4  the case of NCTA versus Brand X.  After the Court

          5  ruled in favor of the FCC, the FCC leveled the

          6  playing field for telephone and cable companies by

          7  deregulating Internet services, it's where we find

          8  ourselves today.

          9                 Net Neutrality has been defined as

         10  the principle that Internet users should be able to

         11  access any web content they so choose, and use any

         12  application they choose, without restrictions or

         13  limitations imposed by their Internet service

         14  provider.

         15                 Since the FCC ruling, companies that

         16  provide Internet access have been considering

         17  turning away from this "Net Neutrality" rule and

         18  embracing a tiered- access approach, where web sites

         19  that pay extra to providers would load faster than

         20  others, and I think of the challenges in all of this

         21  discussion is people don't know that this is even

         22  being considered, sort of the whole challenge that

         23  we have as people concerned about policy in this

         24  area in general.

         25                 Telcom executives believe that a new
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          2  payment program would help the companies invest in

          3  more bandwidth in order to improve download speeds

          4  for customers.  Opponents to the tiered approach

          5  believe that the payment plan would hurt competition

          6  by discriminating against those smaller companies

          7  who cannot compete with the bigger firms.

          8  Discrimination would also hurt innovation, which is

          9  considered to be the key to the Internet.

         10                 Regarding the Federal issues, in 2005

         11  the FCC adopted a policy statement that outlined

         12  four principles to preserve and promote the open and

         13  interconnected nature of the Internet, but they do

         14  not carry any enforcement power.

         15                 In 2006, Congress introduced but did

         16  not pass legislation to update the

         17  Telecommunications Act of 1996, which governed the

         18  federal regulatory framework for voice, video and

         19  data communication services.  However, no bills

         20  contained requirements to protect Net Neutrality.

         21                 Then on January 9th, 2007, Senators

         22  Byron Dorgan from the great state of North Dakota,

         23  where I used to spend some summers, and Olympia

         24  Snowe from Maine, introduced the Internet Freedom

         25  Preservation Act, S. 215, which would keep Internet

                                                            7

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  service providers from prioritizing the traffic to

          3  some web sites over others, which I discussed

          4  earlier.

          5                 Which brings us to our Resolution

          6  712, which outlines the history and advantages of

          7  Network Neutrality with respect to the Internet.  It

          8  argues that Net Neutrality promotes competition and

          9  innovation among Internet services and content

         10  providers, and advocates that Congress pass

         11  enforceable protections for Net Neutrality in order

         12  to ensure that the Internet will continue to foster

         13  innovation, increase competition and spur economic

         14  growth.

         15                 With that, I would like to thank

         16  everyone for being here, and call the first panel.

         17                 I am going to call Doctor Tim Wu,

         18  who's from Columbia University, Timothy Karr, who's

         19  from Free Press, Henning Schulzrinne, who's also

         20  from Columbia University but speaking for himself,

         21  and Randolph May who I understand has to catch a

         22  train, who will also be joining us.

         23                 So, why don't you come up and give to

         24  the Sergeant- At- Arms any materials that you'd like

         25  to have passed around.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Doctor Wu, why don't you go first?

          4                 MR. WU:  Thank you very much.  Thanks

          5  Chair Brewer, and thank you to the City Council.

          6                 I am here to testify in favor of the

          7  resolution, and I have submitted testimony

          8  suggesting some of the reasons I think the

          9  resolution and in general Network Neutrality rules

         10  are important to the health of the economy, and to

         11  the culture of this country.

         12                 Let me, I think, use my time here to

         13  talk about historic context and, kind of, the bigger

         14  picture of what is going on here.

         15                 I think there has always been a

         16  debate in this country over the state and the nature

         17  of our counties infrastructure, and we've seen this

         18  debate replayed over many times, particularly with

         19  communications media, but also with older things,

         20  such as whether it's the channels, whether the

         21  railroads, or whether the roads, and one of the

         22  things that you've seen over the history of this

         23  country and also other countries is this idea of a

         24  certain amount of public infrastructure, sort of the

         25  common carriers of the nation and being important to
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          2  the development of the economy, and even to the

          3  culture of that country.

          4                 I think that when we think of the

          5  roads, or we think about the railroads, or we think

          6  about the other basic things that we depend on to

          7  get from place to place, I think being able to reply

          8  on the idea that these are non- discriminatory

          9  medium that you can, sort of, on 5th Avenue, set up

         10  a business without having to particularly do a deal

         11  with the owner of the roads, or to have the idea the

         12  road is in some ways favoring one set of businesses

         13  over another, is very important.

         14                 That's basically  --  that principle,

         15  it's also if you think even more clearly about the

         16  electric network, which is an example that is often

         17  brought up, it's been an incredibly important

         18  innovation in this country, and even to just the way

         19  this country is, that you're able to plug in

         20  basically any device you'd like, and have it work,

         21  and that the consumer has the choice to do what they

         22  like with their electric network, and that has been

         23  really important to not only refrigerators and

         24  toasters, and vacuum cleaners, but even to the

         25  entire computer revolution itself, but it has been
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          2  developed without any particular gatekeepers who

          3  control what's going on.

          4                 So, I think this is, sort of, a

          5  historically epic era for the future of

          6  communications policy, and the future of our

          7  competition policy, and of our entire country.

          8                 Let me say two more things, let me

          9  make two more points.

         10                 One, I want to talk about why I think

         11  this issue has attracted the kind of public

         12  attention it has attracted. Here we are in City

         13  Council, this was four years ago or five years ago,

         14  a very obscure issue when I started writing on this

         15  in academia I was one of two or three people who

         16  were interested in this issue.  I think the reason

         17  it hits a cord is because I think Americans have

         18  developed a sense that the network is something they

         19  like a lot, they like the way it's been.  They like

         20  the idea that they can do what they want with it, go

         21  to any application, start a blog, start a MySpace

         22  page, start all these things, and that essentially,

         23  there's no centralized gatekeepers who decide, or

         24  very few centralized gatekeepers who decide what is

         25  on the Internet, and what isn't.
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          2                 That has been the magic of the

          3  Internet, and I think it puts a lot of  --  I think

          4  it make this into the kind of place that America

          5  would like to be.  People in college, and I have a

          6  lot of students, and law students, on the one hand

          7  they think about going to work at a company, and

          8  they also start thinking about opening a company or

          9  starting a blog, or becoming an unofficial

         10  journalist in some way, and a lot of that is this

         11  idea, this is an anyone can access kind of media.

         12  It's an open media that anyone can get a start on,

         13  just as in the 19th Century you might go out west

         14  and get a plot of land and start your farm. Whether

         15  you fail or succeed, the whole idea is that you have

         16  a certain amount of hope, and I think that has a

         17  value which is even difficult to quantify.

         18                 Let me add a final, sort of, New

         19  York- specific context.  I think there's some

         20  similarly in the nature of this particular conflict

         21  over Network Neutrality, to some of the battles of

         22  the 1960's over development of New York City, and

         23  particularly the Lower Manhattan Expressway.  If you

         24  think about the battle between Robert Moses and Jane

         25  Jacobs, that I think is some of inspiration for

                                                            12

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  what's going on in Network Neutrality. In other

          3  words, you have a vibrant neighborhood, SoHo and the

          4  West Village, Brooklyn also, but you have these,

          5  sort of, you have a vibrant set of neighborhoods,

          6  and you have this effort to fundamentally change

          7  those neighborhoods by increasing, through plans

          8  that would in a sense plow through the way the

          9  neighborhood works today, and I think that's a lot

         10  of what people are reacting to in the Network

         11  Neutrality debate.

         12                 They are concerned or worried about

         13  plans by AT&T or by Verizon and of course, this

         14  area, the cable companies to more or less begin

         15  charging, picking their anointed carriers, or

         16  picking their anointed favorites for various types

         17  of delivery of information, and fundamentally

         18  change, which is what is now kind of a chaotic,

         19  random, Brooklyn- like, Manhattan- like, kind of,

         20  arrangement into something that looks a lot more

         21  like the Lower Manhattan Expressway, good for cars,

         22  not good for people.

         23                 So, this is sort of the Jane Jacobs,

         24  Robert Moses debate of our era.  This has a lot of

         25  analogies, these efforts to try to protect vibrant
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          2  neighborhoods, and that's why I think it's cities

          3  who understand the nature of overdevelopment, who

          4  understand what you have to do sometimes to protect

          5  the cultural and economic vibrancy that comes from a

          6  decentralized, anything kind of happens approach to

          7  planning that is exactly at stake here in the Net

          8  Neutrality debate.

          9                 So, I support the passage of this

         10  resolution, and I'd be pleased to answer any

         11  questions, though I'm not sure if that's how it

         12  works.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         15                 We'll go through the panel and then

         16  we will have lots of questions.

         17                 Thank you, next.

         18                 MR. KARR:  Thank you.

         19                 My name is Tim Karr, I am the

         20  Campaign Director with Free Press.  I also run a

         21  coalition that's called SavetheInternet.com

         22  Coalition.

         23                 We are pleased to be testifying today

         24  in support of Resolution 712.  We think New York has

         25  an opportunity to really lead the way on this issue.
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          2     Hopefully it will set an example that other

          3  cities will follow.

          4                 I submitted a lengthier testimony,

          5  and I hope that you all take the time to read it.

          6  I'm going to jump into the meat of the issue and

          7  proceed from there.

          8                 First I wanted to just point out that

          9  there is an issue that we all need to be very

         10  concerned about, and it was highlighted earlier this

         11  month when the Organization for Economic Cooperation

         12  and Development submitted findings that placed the

         13  United States fifteenth out of 30 OECD nations in

         14  per capita broadband use.  The U.S. slipped from the

         15  fourth place ranking that we held in 2001, worse,

         16  our growth rate over the past year ranks us 20th out

         17  of 30 countries.

         18                 In addition, consumers in other

         19  countries enjoy broadband connections that are far

         20  faster and cheaper than ours. For example, U.S.

         21  consumers pay nearly twice as much as the Japanese

         22  for connections that are 20 times as slow.  In

         23  essence, Americans are paying a lot more, and

         24  getting a lot less.

         25                 To regain our Internet leadership, we
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          2  must make careful decisions and craft a national

          3  broadband plan that benefits us all.  This worthy

          4  ambition was stated by President George Bush in

          5  2004, when he set a goal for the United States to

          6  have universal, affordable access for broadband

          7  technology by the year 2007.  Guess what?

          8                 The President also said that we ought

          9  to make sure that consumers have plenty of choices

         10  when it comes to purchasing the broadband carrier.

         11                 Last year, Congress attempted to

         12  update the Telecommunications Act you talked about

         13  earlier for the Internet era.  The House Bill called

         14  COPE, and the Senate bill called ATOR were submitted

         15  to Congress.

         16                 At the beginning of the year, the

         17  beginning of 2006, Washington odds- makers were

         18  certain this legislation would sail through Congress

         19  receiving a Presidential signature well before the

         20  end of the year.

         21                 Powerful phone and cable companies

         22  had employed hundreds of lobbyists who swarmed

         23  Capitol Hill to push the legislation, which read

         24  like an industry wish list.  They hired armies of

         25  lawyers and PR consultants and blitzed Washington
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          2  television and radio stations with ads.  But by the

          3  year's end, when the 109th Congress had gaveled to a

          4  close, both COPE and ATOR were nowhere to be found.

          5                 With this kind of political muscle,

          6  many ask how could this legislation have failed?

          7  The bills fell short of fostering Bush's stated goal

          8  of universal, affordable broadband access.  They

          9  were a jumble of measures that amounted to little

         10  more than a massive giveaway of control of the

         11  Internet to a handful of the nation's most powerful

         12  phone and cable companies.

         13                 For millions of Americans this was

         14  unacceptable. An unlikely grassroots coalition of

         15  small businesses, consumer advocates, bloggers, and

         16  others joined under "SavetheInternet.com" when we

         17  collected more than 1.5 million signatures, sent

         18  them to Congress, and as a result of this pressure,

         19  Congress closed its doors without passing this bad

         20  legislation.

         21                 So, this was a grand moment for the

         22  democratic Internet, and the one issue that rallied

         23  the most passionate and widespread  opposition was

         24  the legislation's failure to fully protect the most

         25  important principle in communications law,
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          2  nondiscrimination, and it's most important

          3  application on the Internet, which is Net

          4  Neutrality.

          5                 Now that we're in 2007, the dust has

          6  settled some, a new Congress has reconvened, and a

          7  lot of people are asking, "What exactly Net

          8  Neutrality really is?" And more frankly, "Why should

          9  we care?"

         10                 But put simply, Net Neutrality is the

         11  guiding principle that preserves the free and open

         12  Internet.  Net Neutrality means no discrimination.

         13  As a rule, it prevents Internet providers from

         14  speeding up or slowing down web content based on its

         15  source, ownership or destination.

         16                 With Net Neutrality, the network's

         17  only job is to move data, not choose which data to

         18  privilege with higher service.  Without Net

         19  Neutrality, our broadband network owners, which in

         20  America are predominantly DSL and cable companies,

         21  can interfere with user choice on the web by giving

         22  special priority to the web sites, applications and

         23  services that they prefer.

         24                 The history is clear.  The Internet

         25  was born in a regulatory environment that guaranteed
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          2  strict nondiscrimination. Internet pioneers like

          3  Vinton Cerf and Sir Tim Berners- Lee always intended

          4  the Internet to be a neutral network.  And

          5  nondiscrimination provisions have governed the

          6  nation's communications networks since the 1930's.

          7                 With the Internet, the physical wires

          8  were regulated separate from the content flowing

          9  over them.  The reason was simple:  To keep monopoly

         10  and duopoly owners of infrastructure from using

         11  their power to distort the free market of services

         12  on the web.

         13                 This protection has worked

         14  brilliantly over the last two decades.  You have

         15  these sorts of stories of kids working out of their

         16  garage to create the next Google, the basic software

         17  that  --  or basic coding that was used for instant

         18  messaging was written by a teenager.  You have these

         19  sorts of upstarts that came onto the Net and

         20  introduced ideas, and let them flourish in this free

         21  marketplace of ideas.

         22                 What happened in 2005 is that the FCC

         23  pulled the carpet from beneath this marketplace of

         24  ideas, removed nondiscrimination protections the

         25  guaranteed Net Neutrality. Soon thereafter, the top
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          2  executives of phone and cable companies announced

          3  their intentions to change the Internet forever.

          4                 In the pages of the Washington Post,

          5  Business Week and the Wall Street Journal and

          6  elsewhere, they spoke of plans to become the

          7  Internet's gatekeepers and begin discriminating

          8  against content that doesn't pay them an added

          9  access fee.

         10                 So, let's be clear, no one has been

         11  getting a free ride from the network owners.  It has

         12  been the standard for broadband providers to bill

         13  their customers, and only their customers, for

         14  access to the Internet.  These paying customers

         15  include all of us who buy a monthly subscription,

         16  but they also include every websites and services,

         17  from this City Council's website to CNN.com, that

         18  pays to put their content on- line. Everybody

         19  already pays.

         20                 What these executives were proposing

         21  was a scheme to ransom off access to their customers

         22  to the highest bidders, to add another toll,

         23  charging sites to be first- in- line to a user's

         24  connection.

         25                 This scheme marks a fundamental shift
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          2  in the way the neutral Internet has always worked.

          3  In essence, it takes away the most basic and crucial

          4  tenet of the Internet, a users freedom to connect

          5  on- line to a website of his or her choosing. And as

          6  you might suspect, this is a disaster for users and

          7  producers of Internet content.  The egalitarian

          8  Internet is far too valuable and far too successful

          9  to be sacrificed to create an extra stream of

         10  revenue for a small cartel of cable and telephone

         11  giants.

         12                 Some before us today will probably

         13  argue that the Internet should be free of

         14  regulation.  This is a red herring. The Internet has

         15  always had baseline consumer protections written

         16  into law.  The real question isn't, "Should Congress

         17  regulate the Internet?"  The real question should

         18  be, "For whom do we create this policy?"

         19                 The phone and cable companies have

         20  held Washington's policy- making process in their

         21  grip for far too long.  They are among the most

         22  prolific spenders on Washington lobbyists, campaign

         23  contributions, P.R. firms and paid junkets.

         24                 They spend hundreds of millions of

         25  dollars in Washington to create special rules that
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          2  are written in their favor.  For all their talk

          3  about "deregulation," the cable and telephone giants

          4  work aggressively to force through regulations to:

          5  Protect their market monopolies and duopolies,

          6  stifle new entrants and competitive technologies in

          7  the marketplace, and increase their control over the

          8  content that travels over the web.

          9                 In 2006, last year, was the first

         10  time the phone and cable lobby's agenda was beaten

         11  back by a well organized public.  We came together

         12  and called for Internet policies that put the

         13  public's interests before those of the network

         14  owners. We stopped bad legislation from taking

         15  effect.

         16                 It's now up to Congress to act pro-

         17  actively and put Net Neutrality into law.  We're

         18  very hopeful that the City Council supports this

         19  resolution so that we can organize other cities

         20  across the country to follow this example, and send

         21  a message back to Washington that Net Neutrality is

         22  something that needs to be preserved.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         24  much, next.

         25                 MR. MAY:  Thank you Madam Chairwoman,
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          2  and other distinguished members of the Committee.

          3                 My name is Randolph May.  I am

          4  President of The Free State Foundation, which is an

          5  independent, market oriented think tank located in

          6  Potomac, Maryland, and I do have a different view

          7  today.  I appreciate your having me here to tell you

          8  about it.

          9                 I have over 30 years of experience

         10  working in communications law and policy area, and

         11  have served as Associate General Counsel at the FCC.

         12    I've authored hundreds of scholarly articles and

         13  essays on communications law and policy, and

         14  recently am the co-editor of a book on Net

         15  Neutrality.

         16                 First, let me say that I appreciate

         17  the sentiment behind the resolution as I understand

         18  it, and I can understand some of the motivations,

         19  but most fundamentally I disagree with the

         20  Resolution's suggestion that Net Neutrality mandates

         21  will ensure that in the words of the resolution,"

         22  that the Internet will continue to foster

         23  innovation, increase competition and spur economic

         24  growth, as well as making the Internet faster and

         25  more affordable for all."
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          2                 In my opinion, Net Neutrality

          3  mandates would have precisely the opposite effect.

          4  In other words, the would deter innovation and new

          5  investment, they would dampen competition that I

          6  think we all want, and thereby, they would increase

          7  overall consumer welfare.

          8                 Like the proverbial pleas of

          9  competitors in all regulatory arenas for a level

         10  playing field or fairness, the phrase "Net

         11  Neutrality" has a pleasing ring.  But because much

         12  more is at stake in the debate than pleasing sound

         13  bites, we should make very clear at the outset what

         14   "Net Neutrality" really means in the communications

         15  policy context.

         16                 What it means is that broadband

         17  Internet access providers offered providers like

         18  Verizon, Cablevision, AT&T, T Mobile, Sprint, using

         19  all types of technology platforms, that they would

         20  be regulated on a public utility- like common

         21  carrier basis.  This is key.

         22                 Now, some of the advocates of Net

         23  Neutrality concede that, and say that that's a good

         24  thing, and others like to suggest that, "No, we're

         25  not really talking about making these providers
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          2  traditional common carriers."  But they would be

          3  because at the core of Net Neutrality as your slides

          4  indicated at the beginning, is a nondiscrimination

          5  obligation, and at the core of the public utility

          6  common carrier regulation is the same

          7  nondiscrimination requirement, one that history

          8  demonstrates, and inevitably is accompanied by rate

          9  regulation because there's no way to assess whether

         10  discrimination is occurring without reference to the

         11  price charge for a "like" service.  That's the

         12  history of common carrier regulation.

         13                 Now, I think that such public utility

         14  regulation was, in fact, appropriate during much of

         15  the 20th Century's generally more monopolistic

         16  communications environment.

         17                 Earlier while we were waiting

         18  outside, Professor Wu and I were  --  had a very

         19  nice discussion, and we were talking about the time

         20  when I was--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I'm sure it was

         22  fascinating.

         23                 MR. MAY:  I think he'll even agree.

         24  We're good friends.

         25                 But what I was telling him about the
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          2  time when I was at the FCC in the early 1980's, and

          3  I was Associate General Counsel, and I helped devise

          4  what are called the Computer II Rules of that time.

          5  But in essence, what those rules did, as I think

          6  Professor Wu will acknowledge, is require a

          7  separation of transmission from all of the other

          8  services, the so- called Upstring Services, at that

          9  time of the AT&T monopoly, and I think it was

         10  appropriate at that time, and it served a purpose,

         11  in fact that we hoped it would serve, a spring

         12  competitive development in the communications

         13  industry.

         14                 But here's the key.  We live today

         15  and thankfully, largely due to technology and the

         16  technological developments.  We live in an

         17  environment, a digital environment, that's much more

         18  competitive and where we can enjoy the benefits of

         19  competition, and the bottom line is that the cost of

         20  imposing this type common carrier, regulatory regime

         21  on broadband providers now far exceeds any consumer

         22  benefits.

         23                 Now I'm just going to tell you

         24  briefly why and hopefully, well not quite so

         25  briefly, but hopefully we can talk about some of
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          2  these things.

          3                 Number one, Net Neutrality- like

          4  abuses do not presently exist.  So far, you haven't

          5  heard, and I don't think you really will hear it

          6  today, any type of litany of any current abuses that

          7  exist that sound in Net Neutrality.  There have been

          8  a few isolated incidents.  I could name them, but

          9  they've been quickly remedied when they've been Net

         10  Neutrality- like abuses. So, that's the first point.

         11                 Now, the second point I want to make

         12  is that it's not surprising that that would be the

         13  case that there aren't any. The reason why that's

         14  not surprising is that we now have a workably

         15  competitive broadband environment, where the

         16  broadband Internet service providers are concerned

         17  about people switching. It's not ubiquitous,

         18  everyone in the country doesn't have the same level

         19  of competition but it's emerging quite quickly.

         20                 Now, in my testimony I've got a bunch

         21  of statistics about the amount of usage and

         22  competition.  I'm not going to repeat that, but I do

         23  want to say on the  --  with respect to these OECD

         24  reports that Mr. Karr eluded to, the U.S. Ambassador

         25  at the State Department wrote a letter to the OECD
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          2  last week about this very report, and I hope you'll

          3  get a copy of it.  It explains why those reports

          4  that place the U.S. down at these levels of 13 or

          5  14, are really inaccurate, misleading, and just to

          6  help you understand that, in short, one reason is

          7  that they don't include any Wi-Fi hotspots, any

          8  users that use Wi-Fi service.  They don't include,

          9  for example, all the business lines that are

         10  broadband lines that are high capacity, they don't

         11  include those things, but the letter explains it

         12  all.  But it's not healthy, and it's not good for

         13  people in this country to take those OECD reports,

         14  and basically talk broadband down in terms of what's

         15  happening in this country, and then use that as a

         16  basis for suggesting policy changes.

         17                 I wrote a piece on that last week

         18  that's on my site, about why those statistics are

         19  not good, not accurate.

         20                 Now basically, the fact of the matter

         21  is that in 2002, which is now five years ago, the

         22  FCC which is the agency which is charged with the

         23  responsibility for overseeing this industry,

         24  concluded at that time, and I'm quoting "that

         25  broadband services should exist in a minimally
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          2  regulatory environment that promotes investment,

          3  innovation in a competitive market," and it declared

          4  and I'm quoting again, "high- speed access to the

          5  Internet is evolving over multiple electronic

          6  platforms, including wireline, cable, terrestrial

          7  wireless and satellite." That in fact, is happening,

          8  and in the most recent FCC report, it issues reports

          9  chronicling the development of competition every six

         10  months.  The most recent report, the fastest growing

         11  platform for broadband was the wireless area, which

         12  showed tremendous growth.

         13                 So, the market is becoming ever more

         14  competitive, and is now sufficiently competitive

         15  that it does exercise discipline in the marketplace.

         16

         17                 To push the point, to state it in

         18  layman's terms is, that the reason you don't find

         19  these abuses that presumably the Net Neutrality

         20  advocates are concerned about is because if they

         21  were to commit abuses that consumers didn't like,

         22  they would switch to another provider.

         23                 Now, that's not to say as I point out

         24  in the footnotes of my testimony, that every

         25  consumer is satisfied with every aspect of its
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          2  broadband service.  That's not the way markets work.

          3    But what it is to say, that in terms of what's the

          4  large body of consumers, that we don't find we have

          5  widespread dissatisfaction.

          6                 Then finally, and this really an

          7  important point, and one hopefully we can talk

          8  about.  There are actually legitimate economic

          9  reasons why, as the marketplace continues to

         10  develop, that we might see "discrimination" or want

         11  to see "discrimination" in this marketplace.  Let me

         12  explain that.

         13                 When absent having that type of

         14  pricing flexibility, which the Net Neutrality

         15  prohibitions in which you earlier showed on the

         16  screen  --  let me get back to it.  It seems to me

         17  that the apparent motivation of the Resolution is to

         18  say that the broadband provider would not be able to

         19  charge heavier users of service any more than other

         20  users.

         21                 Well, let me quote what the

         22  Resolution says, and it says, "many are concerned

         23  that charging for services will lead to a type of

         24  Internet toll road, where an individuals access to

         25  locations on the Internet will be faster to the
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          2  website to those content providers who pay a higher

          3  price to the network owner." This has become, sort

          4  of, the sticking point or lead point of Network

          5  Neutrality, and you've identified that quite

          6  properly in your Resolution.

          7                 But here's why it's not an

          8  appropriate policy to prevent that because absent

          9  pricing flexibility, which is an inherent feature of

         10  all competitive free markets, all consumers will

         11  ultimately be required to pay more for Internet

         12  access than they otherwise would in order to cover

         13  the increased capacity costs caused by those web

         14  sites and application providers that generate

         15  especially intensive bandwidth use.

         16                 Examples of such web sites might be

         17  those hosting video- gaming or especially dominant

         18  search engines that handle millions of searches each

         19  day.

         20                 One way or another, all of the

         21  capacity costs imposed on the network ultimately

         22  must be recovered.  Bluntly put, Network Neutrality

         23  mandates that flatly preclude all pricing

         24  flexibility, including the flexibility to charge an

         25  entire segment of the most intense users of the
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          2  Internet's infrastructure resources, risk being

          3  regressive in the same sense as regressive taxes.

          4                 In short, these mandates may well

          5  lead low use consumers to subsidize those whose

          6  applications impose relatively high costs on the

          7  network.

          8                 As the use of the Internet continues

          9  to grow exponentially and applications and business

         10  models continue to evolve, a prohibition on any

         11  pricing flexibility, or in other words, the

         12  imposition of a common carrier regime, will severely

         13  harm overall consumer welfare.  Absent massive

         14  government subsidies, which I don't recommend, and

         15  which are unnecessary if proper market- oriented

         16  policies are adopted, broadband providers,

         17  obviously, will be required to invest million of

         18  dollars in building out and maintaining their

         19  broadband networks in the coming years.  Private

         20  sector firms will not invest billions or millions in

         21  infrastructure, however, unless there is a

         22  reasonable opportunity to recover their costs.

         23                 So the bottom line is that if you

         24  take away this flexibility, or if Congress did, you

         25  also necessarily will take away the incentive that
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          2  the providers of the infrastructure have to invest

          3  in new network facilities and innovative

          4  applications. This lack of new investment, in turn,

          5  will have the perverse effect of dampening

          6  competition among existing and potential broadband

          7  operators.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I know the next testifier witness is

         12  going to use the powerpoint  --  are you using the

         13  powerpoint?

         14                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  All right, you

         16  just need to make sure you have the ability to do

         17   --  thank you, Colleen Pagter, very much.

         18                 Why don't you introduce yourself?

         19                 Thank you for being here.

         20                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  My name is Henning

         21  Schulzrinne. I am the Professor and Chair of the

         22  Department of Computer Science at Columbia

         23  University.  I teach networking and related

         24  technical subject in the Department of Computer

         25  Science and Electrical Engineering there, and I have
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          2  been involved in standardization activities for

          3  Voice Over IP and other related services for about

          4  20 years at this point.

          5                 What I wanted to speak to you about

          6  is primarily as somebody who's interested in

          7  technology, but as well as somebody who has somewhat

          8  of a background in economics.  I have a minor in

          9  economics way back, because it is really an

         10  intersection of an economic issue, as the previous

         11  speaker eluded to and a technical issue.

         12                 Let me just briefly summarize  --

         13  this is probably the most technical part of today's

         14  discussion  -- Network Neutrality actually

         15  encompasses several different facets as to how you

         16  can be non- neutral.  The most crude one, which we

         17  see largely outside the United States, is explicit

         18  blocking of web sites, for example, found in China

         19  and other restrictive countries where you simply

         20  cannot access certain web sites.

         21                 The more interesting ones is that

         22  certain application of poets are being blocked, the

         23  term poet and application is roughly commensurate

         24  although they're not exactly the same.

         25                 So, we are being blocked simply
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          2  because the provider believes that these

          3  applications are inappropriate for use, indeed there

          4  are example of these existing today, and one of the

          5  cases that was mentioned for wireless access was

          6  where indeed a large carrier, which was mentioned

          7  here before, specifically blocks the use of certain

          8  applications as part of their tariff infrastructure

          9  and presumably also uses technical mechanisms to

         10  enforce that particular block.  These mechanisms can

         11  be either technical or they can be semi- technical

         12  in a sense that if you use these applications, you

         13  are subject to discontinuation of that service.

         14                 The third mechanism is that you,

         15  under provision of network access to the end user,

         16  so that only certain applications that are less

         17  demanding in terms of network access can actually

         18  use both services, so that it would be effectively

         19  restricted to e- mail and local access.  Many of the

         20  wireless services essentially, though that's not the

         21  intent, work that way simply because they do not

         22  support the bandwidth, or in some cases do not have

         23  a latency characteristics to facilitate demanding

         24  web applications.

         25                 Indeed, one of the applications
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          2  mentioned  --  one of the carriers mentioned,

          3  satellite, fall forward of being a full competitor

          4  simply because the latencies that the innately have

          5  because light has to travel up and down to G7

          6  (phonetic), albeit, means that we are not suitable

          7  for Voice Over IP for example or suitable for a low-

          8  latency gaming.

          9                 The other mechanism that I think is

         10  going to be the most important characteristic of

         11  network access discrimination that we'll be facing

         12  in the next decade or two, is actually a far more

         13  subtle means of doing that.

         14                 What we are seeing now is really that

         15  there will be a single pipe to each residence,

         16  namely a fiber, be that be run by the DSL provider

         17  or by the cable company.  In some cases you get two,

         18  but that's roughly it.  That fiber can be split in

         19  two ways, namely one way which is the way that many

         20  other countries that have a high broadband

         21  penetration to it, Korea and Japan being very good

         22  examples of that.  They essentially give you a

         23  single big pipe on a four RU (phonetic) services,

         24  and you run services on top of that, be that video-

         25  on- demand, or be that Voice Over IP or classical
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          2  web applications that were used to today.

          3                 An alternative is to essentially take

          4  the fiber which runs through the public right- of-

          5  ways, and runs to residences and splits into two

          6  pieces, namely a restricted general Internet access,

          7  generally restricted to a few megabits per second,

          8  which is generally what we consider broadband in the

          9  United States as opposed to the broadband in many

         10  Asian countries, which is measured in ten and a

         11  hundred megabits per second, and then restrict the

         12  rest of that to access which is much more similar to

         13  cable channels today, in a sense that if you want to

         14  use that capacity you have to go through the local

         15  access provider just like a cable service would have

         16  to do if they knew if whatever  --  a new cooking

         17  channel wants to get to residences, they have to

         18  negotiate with that particular provider to be added

         19  to the roster of cable channels.

         20                 So, it is essentially the

         21  continuation of a cable model in an era where we

         22  essentially, technically have a single pipe of

         23  almost infinite capacity going to a residence.

         24                 I want to emphasize that we should

         25  probably not focus on web access exclusively, simply
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          2  because the Resolution mentions the web to some

          3  extent, it is a common confusion that web equals the

          4  Internet.  That, I think, is a misleading and can be

          5  abused if it is not clarified.  The web is one

          6  application, one of many applications on the

          7  Internet, and probably not even the most important

          8  emerging one, and quite frankly, not the mostly

          9  likely to yield to Network Neutrality violations.

         10                 In particular, I've seen as rather

         11  unlikely that somebody, a carrier, would violate

         12  Network Neutrality by restricting access to Google

         13  simply as was pointed out that would immediately

         14  yield to the departure of their customers.  It is

         15  much more likely, and there's evidence of that

         16  happening that applications which directly compete

         17  with what the carriers want to offer, in particular

         18  Voice Over IP and video will be the non beneficiary,

         19  shall we say, of Network Neutrality violations.

         20                 In particular you are already seeing

         21  that because of this division of bandwidth into two

         22  strata, namely the one managed by the carrier, even

         23  though it's exactly the same technology, and the

         24  open Internet, that we have essentially a two-

         25  tiering of the Internet already today on many
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          2  services, which are being deployed by large carriers

          3  such as Verizon and AT&T to cite two examples.

          4                 So, what happened essentially for

          5  that is that only the tel core or the cable company

          6  will be able to provide high definition, meaning not

          7  just for YouTube, small postage stamp- type of video

          8  that we have today.  Even though technology wise

          9  there would be the possibility of perfect

         10  competition on a common strata.

         11                 In particular, we may need service

         12  guarantees in the Internet, which I'll get to in a

         13  minute.  There have been examples of such a

         14  violation, particularly in the Voice Over IP era,

         15  the name that's familiar to people who's playing

         16  that is Madison- Webber (phonetic), a very small DSL

         17  provider.  Now in that case, the FCC very quickly

         18  clamped down on that, and fined them $15,000 and

         19  they stopped doing that.  But it certainly indicates

         20  that there is an interest in doing that, even though

         21  clearly that example has forestalled that in the

         22  immediate future.

         23                 Now, these days companies seem to

         24  find other usually patent- related ways of

         25  suppressing competition and Voice Over IP, but
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          2  that's not a Network Neutrality issue.

          3                 Competition assumes two things,

          4  namely choice and information.  Namely, there has to

          5  be true choice and the consumer has to have

          6  sufficient information to make an informed choice.

          7  Unfortunately, both are practically lacking and will

          8  be lacking for reasons having to do with the nature

          9  of the information.

         10                 In many parts of the country, despite

         11  the ways that the FCC measures broadband

         12  penetration, that every county where one person has

         13  broadband access, the county has broadband access,

         14  it is lacking in the United States and wireless

         15  access, I hate to say, is such a minute fraction  --

         16    wireless Wi-Fi access, such a minute fraction of

         17  access in the United States right now that it might

         18  bring us one rank up.  It's not going to make any

         19  difference compared to Japan and Korea broadband

         20  penetration.

         21                 I would point out then in that

         22  regard, that there be mechanisms that we have, the

         23  cost that we have, are impractically speaking you're

         24  going to have essentially a duopoly in most

         25  circumstances simply because of right- of- way
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          2  issues.  It is just plain difficult to run many

          3  strands of fiber to each household simply because

          4  the capacity of each fiber is perfectly sufficient

          5   --  one fiber is perfectly sufficient.  So whoever

          6  got there first has every incentive and motivation

          7  and technical capability to be the one and only

          8  provider.

          9                 As I eluded to earlier, broadband

         10  wireless and broadband satellite have not and are

         11  unlikely to provide serious competition, except

         12  possibly in rural areas.  Wi-Fi and Wi-Max, Wi-Fi

         13  has very limited range, maybe a hundred feet so

         14  that's primarily for dense, urban environments.

         15  Wi-Max is larger, but the per-user bandwidth is

         16  likely going to be a megabit or so. So, barely

         17  broadband and so far, deployments have been almost

         18  nil at least in Korea there have been some, here

         19  almost none.

         20                 Satellite, for reasons I mentioned,

         21  is always going to be a poor second cousin to true

         22  fiber access.  You're never going to get on a per-

         23  user basis ten or a hundred megabits, low-latency,

         24  meaning 50 millisecond round-trip time type things

         25  through a satellite simply because it's physically
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          2  difficult, unless you go to a new video-style

          3  system, which has proven itself to be economically

          4  unfeasible because of a cup, which don't really go

          5  by Muir's (phonetic) Law or anything like that.

          6                 The other point which I think has not

          7  been mentioned is that consumers lack good

          8  information on making choices.  They are not

          9  technically sophisticated, and providers do not

         10  provide good information as to what exact service

         11  they can actually acquire.  You don't find out that

         12  something is blocked, as Voice Over IP provider

         13  until you've had your broadband service, and then

         14  you're already sunk hundreds of dollars into

         15  equipment, and you're probably saddled with a

         16  switch- over cost simply because you tend to sign up

         17  for a year- long or longer service contracts, which

         18  might mean that you have to pay hundreds of dollars

         19  to get out of a contract or pay for equipment that

         20  you got for free while you signed up for that

         21  contract, when you find out that suddenly your Voice

         22  Over IP service doesn't work as well as you hoped it

         23  would.

         24                 Currently, there's very little

         25  transparency in what service is offered, carriers
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          2  cap provision, again wireless being a good example

          3  because it was sited earlier.  But it is spelled

          4  out, unlimited Internet access with little

          5  asterisks, unlimited means something, so many

          6  gigabytes per month.  There might be bandwidth caps

          7  for particular services, such as peer- to peer file

          8  sharing, and rates are specified in the`up- to'

          9  mechanism, which essentially means nobody ever gets

         10  that amount of bandwidth anyway.  But you don't know

         11  exactly what you are getting.

         12                 I believe it's probably better also

         13  to talk not about Network Neutrality, but about

         14  Content Neutrality.  The common carriers status in

         15  particular does not prohibit charging differently be

         16  weight for example.  The postal service as a common

         17  carrier, clearly a heavy package costs you more than

         18  a light package.  This is not new.  This has existed

         19  on ships for hundreds of years.  That does not

         20  preclude the use of content neutral charging just

         21  like the postal service, with the exception of

         22  books, does not charge differentially as to whether

         23  you ship porcelain or other materials that you are

         24  choosing.  The Content Neutrality notion is one

         25  where the destination charges do not depend on the
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          2  type of content that you ship, what kind of

          3  destination, the application that you run, and

          4  whether it competes in particular with the postal

          5  service or not.

          6                 The important consideration is to

          7  provide consumer choice and information.  So, a

          8  minimum requirement for consumer protection is to

          9  provide enough information so that if indeed

         10  restrictions are made, that they're patently obvious

         11  before I sign up for service, as opposed to in six-

         12  point type which is only made known to me after I've

         13  subscribed to that particular service.

         14                 I believe long- term, we do indeed

         15  need to look at whether the natural monopolies or

         16  duopolies are fiber provision in particular, and the

         17  limited available air space through frequency

         18  limitations are limited spectrum that's available

         19  just by its nature, mean that a competition

         20  arrangement at the level of infrastructure provision

         21  makes sense.  We do not run two gas pipes, we do not

         22  run two water pipes to each house, even though that

         23  would indeed ensure competition.  Fiber has exactly

         24  the same infrastructure nature as that.  I would

         25  certainly  hope that there is plenty of competition
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          2  as application at the IP layer and above, that

          3  certainly makes a lot of sense, it makes less sense

          4  in my estimation to make that at the fiber level in

          5  particular.

          6                 Our quality- of- service was motioned

          7  that that requires violating Network Neutrality, I

          8  believe that is a red herring.  There are ways to do

          9  that in a content neutral way, in a way that for

         10  example you have a monthly quota for prioritized

         11  traffic which you can use in whichever way you like.

         12    If you like to use that for Voice Over IP, fine.

         13  If you like to use it to browse web pages, fine.

         14  That is a way in which we do already, again, common

         15  carriers, the postal service provides expedited

         16  service, you pay for that but again, it's content

         17  neutral.  They don't go to Amazon and specifically

         18  charge Amazon for that particular expedited service,

         19  except when they pay for it.

         20                 So we can indeed, if that turns out

         21  to be viable, charge extra for specific services but

         22  it should be neutral, and it there should be a clear

         23  arrangement that a service provided by the carrier

         24  itself, be it Voice Over IP or video is subject to

         25  exactly the same charges to indeed ensure a level
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          2  playing field because otherwise what will happen is

          3  clearly that a provider that is competing with a

          4  Voice Over IP service for example, will set an

          5  extremely high rate for those packages when they are

          6  provided by somebody else, and they will set an

          7  accounting rate which since its internal shuffling

          8  if it is provided by the internal service thus,

          9  making service competition impossible.

         10                 I will leave it at that.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 We've been joined by two esteemed

         14  colleagues, Council Member Oliver Koppell, whom I

         15  mentioned before, and Council Member Bill deBlasio.

         16                 I just have one policy joke for you

         17  that you will enjoy, which is, you've been using

         18  your lectures with your students and others, which

         19  is the following.  It's a true story. Just last week

         20  a mother calls me, her son who is about 16 was

         21  beaten up on the corner, not badly, he's okay, and

         22  there were four individuals and they are what we

         23  call in our neighborhood, Blood- want- to- be's, if

         24  you know what that means. Not the Bloods, not the

         25  Crips, the want- to- be's.  He knew two of them, and
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          2  so his mother is a terrific woman, and she made this

          3  poor Evan go to the 24 Precinct.  Now, when you're

          4   --  I have had kids that age, when you're 16 or 17,

          5  to go to the Precinct, and identify young people

          6  whom you might run into again, or their cousins or

          7  sisters, it is a horrible thing.  To his credit, he

          8  went.  He sits there with the mug shot book, any of

          9  us who have been witnesses or been involved with any

         10  kind of incident have to go through those books.

         11  Nobody in the books, nobody at all.  So Evan, being

         12  a very young, smart person, turns to the detective

         13  and said, "Detective, do you have a computer?"  And

         14  the detective says, "Yes."  So they go over to the

         15  desk of the 24 Precinct, and the young man says to

         16  the detective, "Do you have MySpace.com?" And so,

         17  they go over to MySpace.com, and Evan being this

         18  wonderful young man, goes right to the site and

         19  says, "There they are."  It wasn't just two of them,

         20  it was all four of them.  And all I can think of, I

         21  did write to Commissioner Kelly and pointed out to

         22  him that Evan was a whole lot smarter than the

         23  detective at the 24, and everybody's been

         24  apprehended, and they're actually going to the Grand

         25  Jury.
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          2                 So, all I'm saying is there's a great

          3  need to increase our usage in public policy more

          4  creatively, thinking outside of the box.

          5                 So, that's sort of a long way to say,

          6  thank you for your wonderful testimony, and we are

          7  needed to think much more creatively about what

          8  we're doing on the technology front. That was a

          9  wonderful example.

         10                 I was just wondering Dr. Wu if you

         11  could help  -- I know you heard some of this

         12  discussion today which was kind of interesting to

         13  hear different perspectives.  So, there's a thread

         14  here, but I was just wondering if you could sort of,

         15  given what you have heard, how you define Net

         16  Neutrality.  I know you talked about it a little

         17  bit, but I'd love to have you expand on that.

         18                 MR. WU:  How I define the word

         19  Network Neutrality?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Net Neutrality,

         21  given what has been said here today.

         22                 MR. WU:  Well, even independent of

         23  what's been said today, Network Neutrality has taken

         24  on a lot of meanings.

         25                 The original meaning, as I understand
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          2  it when I first began writing about it is as a

          3  principle of design for public network

          4  infrastructures.  That public networks should

          5  generally be designed to be as nondiscriminatory as

          6  possible, and to be neutral as to content neutral,

          7  as to uses, and neutral as to applications so that

          8  it will support a meritocratic competition between

          9  different uses.

         10                 That's the original thing, and so

         11  that's the principle of Net Neutrality.  It's a

         12  principle that a neutral network serves the public

         13  interest, serves the cultural interest, and serves

         14  the economic interests of the country.

         15                 The way you get to neutrality is

         16  through norms, and people just doing things a

         17  certain way, but also through specific anti-

         18  discrimination rules.

         19                 Government has long had a role, and

         20  this is sort of, a partially a response to Randy's

         21  comments, government has traditionally has a role in

         22  having anti- discrimination rules that are the

         23  baselines for how industries do their business.

         24                 This may be a strong example, but we

         25  obviously, everything in the City of New York has
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          2  certain rules about how they have to accept

          3  customers regardless of race, regardless of gender,

          4  and certain other things.  They have to serve all

          5  these customers.  We don't usually say that that

          6  will destroy any incentive to be a business in the

          7  first place, and so I think it's very common,

          8  whether we are taking about public utilities or just

          9  business at large, to have a baseline of

         10  nondiscrimination rules, and those rules are

         11  designed to protect Network Neutrality, which is a

         12  state of open competition between various competing

         13  entities.

         14                 So, that's my definition.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you.

         16                 I know there was some discussion here

         17  about the issue of service providers that charge

         18  based on size and speed, but maybe not content.

         19  That came up a couple of different  -- I'm not

         20  saying I agree or disagree.

         21                 What do you or others think about

         22  that comment?  I know that there was some discussion

         23  about that.

         24                 MR. WU:  Right, I think the pricing

         25  comment  -- the pricing issue, and everyone's talked
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          2  a little bit about pricing, and I think a lot of

          3  these things do at some point turn into pricing

          4  issues.

          5                 My position in this entire debate has

          6  been that it is perfectly fine for carriers to

          7  charge consumers for the amount of bandwidth they

          8  want to use.  The same way electric companies charge

          9  you more if you leave your TV and stereo on full

         10  blast 24 hours a day.  I mean, you use more, you pay

         11  more.

         12                 The problem comes with the charging

         13  of termination fees.  That is, using your, what's in

         14  telecom jargon, called the termination monopoly.

         15  The fact that you have a customer and you start to

         16  charge people to reach that customer, that is where

         17  the problems start to arise.

         18                 That is to say, Verizon  --  if you

         19  are a Verizon customer, the only way to reach a

         20  Verizon customer is through Verizon right now, and

         21  so, if they charge an additional fee for others to

         22  reach them, that's where you start to have the

         23  problems.  That's where it starts to look like a

         24  payola scheme. That is, they have X- millions of

         25  customers, they say, "If you want to reach our
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          2  customers, you want to reach this customer base, you

          3  need to pay this amount of money to reach us."  That

          4  is when you are starting to have a different type of

          5  pricing, namely a termination pricing, which I think

          6  is deleterious for this market, and actually,

          7  deleterious for almost any market you see it.

          8                 You see it in local telephone pricing

          9  where it creates a lot of problems.  You see it in

         10  the radio market where people have to pay in order

         11  to get their songs listened to, and this is the

         12  whole payola problem.

         13                 So, there's good and bad ways of

         14  getting things paid for, and sometimes the wrong

         15  pricing structure can really hurt a market, and that

         16  is what this is, to my mind, all about.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Mr. May, I know

         18  you wanted to comment.

         19                 MR. MAY:  Thank you.

         20                 The real nub of this issue ultimately

         21  does come down to whether in a marketplace  --  this

         22  is not perfectly competitive, but despite what the

         23  professor on my left has said, I think by all

         24  accounts it is getting more competitive all the

         25  time.  At some point the trade- offs  --  regulation
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          2  has costs, costs in the transaction cost of

          3  regulation, but also when you prohibit  --  when you

          4  have a nondiscrimination rule, it requires be

          5  definition that all providers essentially be the

          6  same and in a competitive market you take away their

          7  incentives to find ways to distinguish themselves to

          8  satisfy consumer demands that are unmet.  That is

          9  what competitors do in a free marketplace.

         10                 Now, I want to make this point and

         11  illustrate it. Professor Wu, and we did have a great

         12  conversation  --  we preceded this by about an hours

         13  worth of discussion, and we done this for a while.

         14                 MR. WU:  We had the pre- hearing.

         15                 MR. MAY:  But we differ

         16  fundamentally, and this is an example of it.

         17                 He earlier, in trying to illustrate

         18  what Net Neutrality means said that, "It's not

         19  unlike a prohibition on race or gender

         20  discrimination" just a moment ago, which we all I

         21  think would support as an appropriate type of

         22  governmental regulation, but I think it's

         23  fundamentally different in this way, there are no

         24  efficiencies to be gained really in an economic

         25  sense by allowing the merchant or whoever we're
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          2  talking about to discriminate on the basis of race

          3  or gender.  There just aren't.               There

          4  are, and this is a key point, which I hope you will

          5  consider, there are efficiencies that may be gained

          6  when the network provider, the infrastructure

          7  provider, is allowed in certain ways to integrate,

          8  and another way of saying integrate when you come

          9  down to it, might be discriminate by choosing who to

         10  affiliate with, and how to make a certain deal.

         11                 In choosing who to affiliate with in

         12  order to provide a service on a less costly basis

         13  that meets a consumer demand, and when you don't

         14  allow that ultimately, your basically saying  --

         15  you are saying that all these providers are

         16  essentially just common carriers, and when they're

         17  common carriers they don't have the incentive to

         18  compete against each other by finding new ways,

         19  again, of satisfying consumer demand.             Now

         20  again, if we lived 30 years ago, even 20 years ago,

         21  or if you want to, ten years ago, the environment in

         22  communications was much different, and there was

         23  much more of a justification for having these types

         24  of rules.

         25                 I helped to devise the rule against
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          2  discrimination in the Computer II proceeding, and I

          3  think it was a good thing. But when you have

          4  competition, and the competition is due to the

          5  technology, and they're not all the same, I

          6  understand satellites aren't perfect substitutes,

          7  and wireless is not, but I also don't believe with

          8  all due respect, having been doing this a long time,

          9  that even as brazen as you are, that you can

         10  necessarily foresee that way that technology will

         11  develop down the road, and you reach a certain point

         12  where it's developed far enough where it's better at

         13  that point, the cost shift against having regulators

         14  decide these things, and letting the marketplace

         15  decided that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Go ahead Dr.

         17  Schulzrinne, you want to make a comment, go ahead.

         18                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  Yes, I just want to

         19  make two comments.

         20                 I mean, I think none of us would have

         21  great problems if it was truly a transparent market

         22  today.

         23                 MR. MAY:  Excuse me, what?

         24                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  A transparent

         25  market today.  It is the concern that we have that
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          2  all the people that speak on the competition side

          3  say, "We will at some point or never, trust us, have

          4  competition."

          5                 MR. MAY:  No, I said we have workable

          6  competition now.

          7                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  In most places in

          8  the United States, you have exactly two choices of

          9  high- speed broadband if you're lucky.

         10                 You have exactly fiber and DSL, and

         11  essentially a duopoly situation where the

         12  incremental cost of deploying a third alternative is

         13  measured in the tens of billions of dollars.

         14                 So a cost of entry into that field is

         15  extremely high.  I would also like to point out that

         16  we have common carriers where competition thrives,

         17  namely one of the oldest types of services  --

         18  delivery services, as far as I know judging from how

         19  they advertise on TV, DHL, FedX, UPS, the postal

         20  service and more specialized service, compete on

         21  service.

         22                 MR. MAY:  No, they're not

         23  regulating--

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We don't need to

         25    --  go ahead, you can keep going.  We're going to
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          2  have to not have endless debate back and forth, but

          3  go ahead.

          4                 Do you want to add anything?

          5                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  So, these are

          6  services which are content neutral, they have a

          7  transparent pricing system, they do not have

          8  determination fees that as I said were mentioned,

          9  and they indeed have competition and competitive

         10  arrangements, and they have worked quite well.

         11                 So I would argue that we should have

         12   --  turn it the other way around, if one can

         13  demonstrate, in a particular market, not in the

         14  United States because it's a very diverse market,

         15  that there is indeed measurable competition, in

         16  terms of switch- overs, and diverse offerings that

         17  are truly available to users, by geni-coefficience

         18  (phonetic) or by the appropriate coefficience

         19  (phonetic) that you have is that you have

         20  mechanisms, then you can allow indeed

         21  discrimination, in that particular market, but in

         22  many markets we do not have competition at all.

         23                 So, allowing a discrimination

         24  wherever competition exists individually, just

         25  because I can get five different services in New
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          2  York City, does not help somebody who lives in

          3  Montana, in terms of their competition.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Just so you

          5  know, we've been having with the Mayor's Office,

          6  based on a bill that we passed, we've been having

          7  broadband "hearings" in different neighborhoods

          8  starting with the Bronx and we're going to Brooklyn

          9  next month, and it is an interesting discussion

         10  about what really is the competition.  It depends,

         11  of course, on how you define it.  Are you just

         12  talking Internet?  Are you talking something broader

         13  as you described?

         14                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  Right.

         15                 MR. MAY:  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  So, all of these

         17  issues are coming up.

         18                 So far, it doesn't seem like there's

         19  a lot of opportunity for competition, but maybe it

         20  depends on how you define it.  Go ahead.

         21                 MR. WU:  Can I comment on that issue,

         22  too?

         23                 I think there's a  --  I want to get

         24  back to this issue of termination pricing because we

         25  talked about this, and I think it's an important
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          2  issue.

          3                 The termination pricing, just to make

          4  this very clear, if I am a carrier, here I am,

          5  right?  These are my customers over here, and you

          6  are applications providers, termination pricing

          7  means if you want to reach you guys, maybe you're

          8  Yahoo and you're Google, and you're Ebay or

          9  something, you want to reach them, you've got to pay

         10  me to reach these people, right?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right.

         12                 MR. WU:  You've got to pay some money

         13  to reach these people, that's termination pricing

         14  which is at the center of this.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right.

         16                 MR. WU:  And as soon as I'm allowed

         17  to charge termination fees, I think my incentives

         18  fundamentally change. That is, if I'm the gatekeeper

         19  to these people, if I was only charging them, right,

         20  my interest is in giving them the max amount of

         21  bandwidth possible and trying to get them to pay

         22  more, and then have a better service.

         23                 If I'm in a position where I'm now

         24  getting money from you, my customers, but also

         25  getting you termination fees, there's some incentive
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          2  to maintain a certain level of scarcity so that you

          3  have  --  if I'm the gatekeeper, I want to keep that

          4  gate relatively small.  I mean, not tiny, but

          5  relatively small so that I can try and leverage

          6  between all of you, and bid for the highest amount.

          7                 There's an incentive that is created

          8  when you allow termination pricing to maintain a

          9  certain amount of scarcity.

         10                 So I think it's absolutely relevant

         11  to this question of where we are in the world, what

         12  kind of broadband policy we have, that Network

         13  Neutrality rules effect your incentives to create

         14  scarcity or to create abundance in order to reach

         15  customers.

         16                 I think and I'm just repeating

         17  myself, in a world where people are allowed to

         18  charge application providers to get through the

         19  gateway to reach their customers, they have certain

         20  incentives to maintain scarcity, and I think that's

         21  a serious issue.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  In a situation

         23  now, this is my naivete, with regard to termination

         24  fees, exist or don't exist?  This is what we're

         25  hoping--
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          2                 MR. WU:  Right now, there are not

          3  termination fees charged, I should be careful about

          4  this, they're not charged as a general speaking on

          5  the Internet as it is today, it's a natural born

          6  bill and keep system in telecom jargon.  There's

          7  people who charge their own customers and keep the

          8  money, and that's the way it works.

          9                 But what has threatened to happen,

         10  that's in regular broadband Internet.  In mobile and

         11  in other parts of the telephony world, it's quite

         12  complicated, but sometimes people are allowed to

         13  charge termination fees, and I think a lot of people

         14  would agree that the impact of having termination

         15  fees can be deleterious to the incentives to create

         16  abundant spectrum, big fat megabit pipes where there

         17  is essentially very little scarcity.

         18                 It also leads to all kinds of crazy

         19  scheming and, I mean, look at the telephone

         20  industry.  There's always all kinds of strange

         21  things going on, reciprocal compensation, of people

         22  jacking up their fees or trying to  --  you know,

         23  you just create all kinds of problems.

         24                 Right now, the pricing system on the

         25  Internet is you pay your provider.  Yahoo pays its
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          2  provider, and there's nobody trying to, sort of, dig

          3  out extra money from anybody else, there's not

          4  necessarily a protection scheme or gatekeeper, or

          5  what I've called the Tony Soprano model of Internet

          6  running, where you charge people to get through that

          7  gate to get to their customers.

          8                 I think that's been absolutely

          9  important.  I think that's at the center of this

         10  debate.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Jeff Baker has a

         12  question.

         13                 MR. BAKER:  Mr. May, I wanted to ask,

         14  you mentioned before that you were not aware  --  or

         15  very few abuses of a Net Neutrality-type have

         16  occurred to this point, you stated that before?

         17                 MR. MAY:  I said there have been a

         18  few that are Net Neutrality-type complaints, yes.

         19                 MR. BAKER:  But they were quickly

         20  remedied and they're not generally a problem?

         21                 MR. MAY:  In general, that's true.

         22  The ones that I'm aware of, yes.

         23                 MR. BAKER:  If your position is that

         24  these things are quickly remedied by the market

         25  because there is competition, and because consumers
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          2  can switch, what would be the disadvantage of

          3  enacting Net Neutrality principles?

          4                 MR. MAY:  That's a good question.

          5  Here's the answer, based on my long experience in

          6  regulation.

          7                 There's a difference between

          8  remedying abuses and the regular word people used

          9  the Latin phrases "ex-ante and ex-opposed

         10  (phonetic), if you adopt a Net Neutrality regulation

         11  like the type that's being proposed, and put it into

         12  law or regulation, I mean, what happens is the law

         13  is enacted, then the FCC develops regulations to

         14  interpret it, and you know how that goes but the

         15  problem is that it almost always tends to be, and

         16  keep in mind we're talking about an area here that's

         17  a fast changing one- technology, all areas of

         18  regulation don't involve that they of dynamism due

         19  to the technological type.

         20                 What happens is, you tend to  --  the

         21  regulations tend to be over- broad, and so in this

         22  case for example what we're talking about, defining

         23  discrimination sounds easy, or these bills talk

         24  about degrading or impairing services.  Those terms,

         25  they would be for years and years in litigation,
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          2  they would ultimately be decided, what that

          3  involves.

          4                 It's much more efficient and likely

          5  to cause less harm down the road in terms of

          6  prohibiting services that the consumers actually

          7  want.  If you wait until there's been a real abuse,

          8  if someone can file a complaint, you look at the

          9  particular market circumstances at that time, you

         10  know, who the competitors are, what the complaint

         11  is, and if you decide whether under the specific

         12  circumstances there ought to be some targeted

         13  remedy, and that's what I've proposed a whole regime

         14  that would work like that, and because I'm not

         15  ruling out the possibility that there could be Net

         16  Neutrality- type of issues.

         17                 Also, I understand that broadband is

         18  not  --  the competition is not the same in every

         19  place, and the Chairwoman has a very good point

         20  about parts of New York.

         21                 What we ultimately want is a

         22  communications policy, is to really have competition

         23  from multiple technological platforms because when

         24  you have that, you have real competition.          If

         25  you have one platform and someone's deciding how to
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          2  divide it up, some regulator, you know we're going

          3  to require nondiscrimination and divide it up this

          4  way, then you have to regulate the price, that's not

          5  ever going to be real competition.

          6                 So, I would rather see the government

          7  provide direct subsidies, tax credits, if there are

          8  rural areas, or if they're here in New York, and get

          9  another competitor in there so then you don't have

         10  to have, and you don't want to have this type of

         11  regime.

         12                 MR. KARR:  If I may comment just a

         13  bit.

         14                 This notion of competition is very

         15  important, and I thing it's worse putting it in

         16  terms that most of us can understand.

         17                 Free Press and others have done

         18  research that show that 98 percent of your broadband

         19  home services are your choice of either the cable,

         20  or DSL, or your phone company.  That's 98 percent of

         21  the market.  It's more than 98 percent in fact.

         22                 The other two percent, or less than

         23  two percent, are some of these other applications

         24  that we've discussed.

         25                 In most of the cases, you have the
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          2  largest phone and cable companies, the executives

          3   --  this speaks some to the threat issue, the

          4  executives of these companies have gone on the

          5  record, they have gone on the record in the pages of

          6  the Washington Post and the Wall Street Journal,

          7  they've spoken to Reuters about imposing the type of

          8  discrimination that would be a violation of Net

          9  Neutrality as it's been defined today.

         10                 They've spoken about it at Wittaker

         11  (phonetic), who is of AT&T.  He's now leaving, and

         12  has received a very healthy retirement package, and

         13  is being replaced by another fellow, Randall

         14  Stevenson (phonetic), who's also spoken about

         15  imposing this type of discrimination, and so, the

         16  threat really exists, and the notion that we should

         17  do nothing because the threat isn't real or that the

         18  case hasn't happened, is sort of a kin to sending

         19  your children to the beach when there's a stage five

         20  hurricane circling off the shore.

         21                 These companies do intend to do this.

         22    They have struck alliances with companies like

         23  Sisco (phonetic), which creates routers of the

         24  Internet to actually build technology that will

         25  allow them to get into your content and filter it in
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          2  a way that, again, is a direct violation of Net

          3  Neutrality as it's been defined.

          4                 So, the competition doesn't exist.

          5  Most cases, the majority of Americans have a choice

          6  of none, one or two broadband empires.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I think we've

          8  been around these five boroughs, and we see that.

          9                 Jeff had one more question, go ahead.

         10                 MR. KARR:  Sure.

         11                 MR. BAKER:  When I pay for Internet

         12  service or probably most of the people pay for

         13  Internet service, they're paying for usually the  --

         14    what they call bandwidth, it's the amount that I

         15  can download at any particular time, a limit that I

         16  can download.

         17                 What I don't pay for, and what I and

         18  most people don't have a need for, is the latency

         19  but I understand there are applications that do

         20  require a low- latency, or that work better with a

         21  low- latency.

         22                 Is there anything wrong with charging

         23  to receive that service, and then if there is,

         24  what's the disadvantage to the rest of the consumers

         25  if some people are being segregated out for these
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          2  low- latency applications?

          3                 MR. SCHULZRINNE:  If I can speak to

          4  that since that's a topic that I've worked on quite

          5  a bit.

          6                 The low- latency applications, I

          7  mean, that sounds fancy, but essentially this is the

          8  telephone, as mundane an application as we can think

          9  of.

         10                 One can, I believe, make two

         11  responses to that.

         12                 The first one is that in general, a

         13  designed network will provide good low- latency

         14  services, particularly fiber network, will provide

         15  fiber- based network, without special technology.

         16                 I mean, we work in a university-

         17  based environment where we have what's called

         18  Internet II, and has provided that type of service

         19  for many years without any special discrimination.

         20                 Indeed, Internet II has gone through

         21   --  this was one of the selling points, that we do

         22  quality- of- service, we do all kinds of research on

         23  that, and the research outcome was, we don't want to

         24  do it.  It costs more to differentiate, than it

         25  costs not to do it.  It was more complicated, more

                                                            68

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  management, abuse possibilities, all of that.

          3                 So, in general I would say the first

          4  idea would be, try not to allocate, but simply make

          5  the network good enough to provide good service

          6  because, as it happens, what you think of low-

          7  latency service is just being good for Voice Over

          8  IP, it also means that if you don't have low-

          9  latency service, generally speaking, your file

         10  transfers will be slower, Internet game- type of

         11  systems won't work nearly as well.  So, many of the

         12  applications that we have today, that are not Voice

         13  Over IP will suffer the same fate.

         14                 So I believe in many cases, the best

         15  choice, the cheapest choice indeed, for non-

         16  wireless systems, wireless is based on natural

         17  bandwidth limit, but for fiber- based systems, is to

         18  not discriminate in those circumstances.

         19                 If it should be necessary to

         20  discriminate in some circumstances because of

         21  technology restrictions, or because of again, the

         22  light user versus heavy user discrimination, I mean,

         23  one of the things that other countries do better is

         24  that they have a more entry level system for DSL,

         25  where at entry level DSL is extremely cheap for like
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          2  below $10.00 equivalent per month, but it is

          3  restricted in terms of bandwidth volume.

          4                 So, a volume- based restriction I

          5  think, if it's content neutral, is an acceptable

          6  one.

          7                 However, truly in those cases, this

          8  has to be seen in the light of truly competitive

          9  environments.  If you have a single provider of that

         10  service, and they are essentially competing against

         11  external providers that offer services such as

         12  voice, which compete with their own legacy service

         13  offerings, there's a clear possibility for abuse, in

         14  that they can suppress those service competitions by

         15  charging people an excessive amount so to prevent

         16  erosion of their legacy services.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I want to thank

         18  the  --  do you want to go ahead?

         19                 MR. WU:  I just want to make one

         20  point on that, sorry.

         21                 To answer that question very

         22  directly, I like the term Network Neutrality.  I'm

         23  not a Network Neutrality absolutist.  The measures I

         24  have supported to back Network Neutrality, and they

         25  include the Snowdorg (phonetic) and bill, and also
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          2  including the merger agreement which is on AT&T

          3  right now, which AT&T operates under right now, have

          4  always suggested there's no problem with upgrading

          5  the network to try to accommodate low- latency

          6  applications, voice or video or so forth.          The

          7  trick is  --  so there's not problem with the

          8  carrier to my mind, trying to recognize or provide

          9  lower latency connections if it wants to, if it

         10  thinks that's the best technological approach.  It

         11  might not be, and that's what Internet II says, but

         12  if it really thinks that's going to work, to go

         13  ahead.

         14                 The problem is then picking and

         15  choosing who gets to use or who gets to take

         16  advantage of that, and making sort of deals so you

         17  have preferred video carriers and preferred that.

         18                 I have no problem with a carrier

         19  deciding to speed up all of the video traffic it

         20  recognizes, and pushing it down the network, as a

         21  service to its consumers, you know, to make that a

         22  better service, and saying, "We have this, it

         23  delivers video very, very quickly."  If that's a

         24  good approach, and I mean, technologically it's an

         25  open question, but if that's a good approach.
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          2                 The real problem again, is picking

          3  and choosing between competitors and saying, "You're

          4  going to win this fight because we golf together,

          5  and you're pals with Verizon or something."  That is

          6  the beginning of the end for the Internet as we know

          7  it.  When it all becomes about making deals, as

          8  opposed to having better technology, and that's why

          9  I'm in this fight basically.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         11  much.  It was a wonderful panel, and I'm sure we'll

         12  have many more discussions.             I think we

         13  learned a lot because one of the issues that was

         14  brought up was that the consumer education is still

         15  a challenge in all of this, and that's one of the

         16  problems why people  --  it's not transparent

         17  because the consumers challenge, and I think those

         18  of us in this room are probably certainly more in

         19  the beltway as to what's going on and it's still

         20  confusing, so.

         21                 Thank you very much.  We look forward

         22  to more discussions.

         23                 Next panel is Cameron Craig, Joshua

         24  Breitbart, Seth Johnson, thank you.

         25                 This is the second panel, and there
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          2  will be one more after this.

          3                 MR. BREITBART:  Good afternoon, my

          4  name is Joshua Breitbart.  I am the Policy Director

          5  for People's Production House.

          6                 PPH trains middle and high school

          7  students in public schools and lower- educated

          8  immigrant workers to be radio journalists.  That

          9  means analyzing how the media works, and how to

         10  change it.

         11                 Thank you for addressing this issue

         12  of critical importance to New Yorkers, to the on-

         13  line world, and to the soon to- be on- line world.

         14                 Thank you for giving me the

         15  opportunity to contribute my thoughts on the matter.

         16

         17                 I don't need to tell anyone in this

         18  room that the country looks to us and New York City

         19  for leadership in media and telecommunications.  It

         20  is a role comparable to the one that California

         21  plays in the auto industry.

         22                 I wanted to bring to your attention

         23  that Net Neutrality issue that has mostly fallen

         24  through the cracks but it affects New Yorkers in

         25  very real ways, and that is the application of Net
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          2  Neutrality principles to broadband over cell phones.

          3

          4                 Mr. May mentioned wireless is a fast

          5  growing field, I wasn't sure if you meant like Wi-

          6  Fi unlicensed spectrum, or wireless broadband cell

          7  phones, but it's a matter that the FCC is currently

          8  looking into, and I want to encourage this Committee

          9  to engage the issue of Net Neutrality in that forum,

         10  as well as in Congress.  Actually comments on the

         11  proceeding are due today, and I'm hoping to get back

         12  to you all before 5 o'clock to file those comments.

         13                 Two people that I actually cite are

         14  here.  One is Mr. Craig, to my right.  The other is

         15  Professor Wu, who you heard from.  He produced an

         16  excellent working paper which he didn't really talk

         17  about on the topic with a compelling title,

         18   "Wireless Net Neutrality; Cellular Carterfone and

         19  Consumer Choice in Mobile Broadband."

         20                 He paints a damning picture of an

         21  oligopoly using it's vertically integrated control

         22  over the device, applications, and connectively to

         23  stifle innovation, and extract high fees from users.

         24                 This is not merely an academic issue.

         25    I spoke with members of the New York City AIDS
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          2  Housing Network, NYCAHN, recently, including Mr.

          3  Craig, and they have found that desktop computers

          4  are not sufficient for their communication needs, in

          5  large part because many members and staff members do

          6  not have computers at home.  So, they use cellular

          7  devices.

          8                 Despite their limitations in

          9  functionality and screen size, not to mention the

         10  monthly fees, those devices have succeeded in

         11  getting more people communicating, checking their e

         12  mail, and engaging in the community organizing work

         13  of NYCAHN.

         14                 The people I spoke with appreciate

         15  having a device of their own that they could get to

         16  know and could customize. This is much more like the

         17  one- person- to- one- computer ratio that you see in

         18  wealthy homes or in bigger businesses, than it is

         19  like the shared computer experience in the NYCAHN

         20  office, or at the public library, or at some NYCAHN

         21  members' homes, if there is any computer or even a

         22  home since rent support for people living with HIV

         23  is not what it used to be.

         24                 In addition, the people I spoke with

         25  were more likely to have extensive experience using
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          2  a cell phone than a computer.  They described a cell

          3  phone as a much more common possession among people

          4  they knew than computers, except perhaps for

          5  households with school- aged children.

          6                 PPH is currently working with groups

          7  like NYCAHN to conduct research on Internet use in

          8  New York City, and one of the areas we hope to shed

          9  more light is the role of cellular networks in

         10  providing New Yorkers with meaningful access to the

         11  Internet.

         12                 If Internet- equipped cell phones are

         13  currently or potentially a significant source of

         14  Internet access for New Yorkers, especially if it is

         15  for those without other means of access, then we

         16  need to make sure that the cellular Internet

         17  experience is as open and potentially enriching as

         18  Internet access over phone, cable, or fiber optic

         19  lines.

         20                 I want to cite three of the policy

         21  recommendations that Professor Wu makes in his paper

         22  for how to do this with mobile phones.  The written

         23  testimony that you have is the full quotation of

         24  four pieces, and that's just from the executive

         25  summary, but Cellphone Carterfone, which is an open
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          2  standards requirement for connecting devices to the

          3  network; Basic Network Neutrality Rules should apply

          4  to broadband over cell phones, and there should be

          5  standardized application platforms, meaning open

          6  standards for putting applications on those devices.

          7                 These policy recommendations should

          8  be considered in the deliberations over Resolution

          9  Number 712 as well as in future considerations of

         10  Net Neutrality or the digital divide, in the

         11  development of new broadband infrastructure, and in

         12  any contract negotiations with cell phone service

         13  providers.

         14                 If we want to promote competition,

         15  innovation and deployment, then the device, content

         16  or applications, and connectivity should all be

         17  separate and should interact based on open

         18  standards.  That kind of marketplace would give New

         19  Yorkers the widest range of opportunities to get on-

         20  line, and it would spur innovation, especially at

         21  the end user level.  That's the way people get to

         22  design their own communications future.

         23                 In an information- driven economy,

         24  every person who is plugged in is like a power

         25  plant, building our collective capacity.  Any
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          2  obstacle you put between them and others, slow

          3  service, blocked web sites, restricted applications,

          4  limits their ability to contribute to that economy.

          5  The only person who wins is the person who put the

          6  obstacles in place in the first place.

          7                 We are talking about workers and

          8  citizens trying to contribute to society, and being

          9  frustrated by inadequate technology.

         10                 New York City suffers an economic

         11  loss of productivity as a result of these

         12  conditions.  I'm talking about the cell phones, and

         13  if the MTA provided a service as slow and unreliable

         14  as cell phone companies do, everyone would get fired

         15  from their jobs for missing work or, they would just

         16  quit in frustration.

         17                 In conclusion, I just wanted to thank

         18  you again for taking leadership on this issue of Net

         19  Neutrality, and I want to encourage you to take

         20  every possible measure not simply to ensure that an

         21  open Internet awaits those who log on, but to extend

         22  that open Internet to meet New Yorkers where they

         23  now are.            That includes those who

         24  currently use cellular devices as their primary

         25  source of Internet access.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          4  much, next.

          5                 MR. CRAIG:  Good afternoon, my name

          6  is Cameron Craig.  I am Community Organizer for The

          7  New York City AIDS Housing Network.  I would have

          8  had copies of my testimony, but I couldn't get into

          9  my computer this morning.  So, I have to read it off

         10  my Blackberry.

         11                 Good afternoon, my name is Cameron

         12  Craig and I'm a Community Organizer for The New York

         13  City AIDS Housing Network.

         14                 I am here today, oh, excuse me.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  This happens to

         16  me also, so you could certainly just summarize if

         17  you want because you know the topic extremely well.

         18  The same thing happens to me, I know exactly what's

         19  going on.

         20                 MR. CRAIG:  Okay, I am here today

         21  basically to  -- like I know a lot of people would

         22  be wondering why would an AIDS organization be

         23  interested in a situation like this.

         24                 Well one, being in this age of

         25  technology now, a lot of us are  --  a lot of
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          2  communication is done by computer, all right?  And

          3  those of us who are living with HIV/AIDS, who are

          4  low- income people can't afford computers.  All

          5  right?  And either we are not computer savvy or we

          6  don't know anything about computers, or we're scared

          7  of them.

          8                 The only other time you can get a

          9  hold of a computer is either going to the library,

         10  or in my case, being supplied with a Blackberry.

         11                 In the office, I find it a lot easier

         12  for me to get my e- mails, and to find out what's

         13  going on throughout New York City, and throughout

         14  the country through my Blackberry than it is for me

         15  to go on the computer, because usually with my

         16  computer with the service down, I can still get in

         17  through the wireless.

         18                 I found that in my years of dealing

         19  with computers, and I go way back with computers, I

         20  go back to when we still had cards, where if you

         21  punched up one T wrong, it dumped your whole

         22  program.

         23                 So, I am aware of computers, but it

         24  just seems to me that in this age of information,

         25  and especially with HIV and AIDS, and if you look at
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          2  what Commissioner Frieden wants to do with him

          3  putting a lot of information on the Internet, well

          4  you can't reach the AIDS community if we don't have

          5  computers.  And you can't reach the AIDS community

          6  if they have computers, but they don't know how to

          7  access the Internet.

          8                 The Internet is not hard, but for

          9  some of us who are scared of computers, we just look

         10  at it and say, "It's not for me."

         11                 In short, I just want to say that if

         12  you're going to pass this, it needs to be where

         13  Internet accessibility would be best to be gone

         14  through the telephone.  Whereas, more of us have

         15  cells phone than we have home phones, okay.  Even

         16  with the low cost of home phones, you don't get

         17  Internet accessibility with your home phone as you

         18  can with your cell phone.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Very well done,

         21  thank you, next.

         22                 Thank you, sir.

         23                 MR. JOHNSON:  Hi, my name is Seth

         24  Johnson.  I am here speaking for the Dynamic

         25  Platform Standards Project.
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          2                 This is an approach to Network

          3  Neutrality that is minimally regulatory.

          4  Essentially it says that this is the way the Network

          5  has behaved according to standards, and if you don't

          6  follow that, then don't call it Internet, okay?

          7                 It's been endorsed by many people,

          8  Steve Wasniak (phonetic), David Reed (phonetic), who

          9  actually was part of the group of about three or

         10  four grad students and professors who convinced

         11  Vince Surf (phonetic) and Bob Conn (phonetic) to

         12  separate what's called the Internet Protocol from

         13  the protocol that they were working on at that time.

         14

         15                 At that time, what they did was they

         16  created a flexible and generic platform that would

         17  support whatever kinds of applications you could

         18  develop, and the problem is that the phone and the

         19  cable providers, and I said this at the Broadband

         20  Advisory Committee Meeting recently, they don't want

         21  to deliver the Internet at high- speed.

         22                 The thing I wanted to be sure to

         23  mention here is that the means of taking away the

         24  flexibility that they have offered is certain

         25  industry standards, such as IP Multimedia Sub
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          2  systems, IMS, approached to so-called quality of-

          3  service, which would essentially take away the

          4  flexibility of the Internet. The one thing I wanted

          5  to make sure I make clear to you is that the reason

          6  why we have Network Neutrality is because the

          7  network is flexible and generic.  Any application

          8  that I, once I buy Internet connection, put on any

          9  port I choose, and I make it talk any language I

         10  please, in any pattern I please, is supported by the

         11  Internet protocol which David Reed and others

         12  developed in 1977.

         13                 Now, the problem is that the industry

         14  standard bodies, like IP Multimedia Systems, the IMS

         15  form, they can't get adoption for their standards,

         16  okay?  Because network developers and standards

         17  bodies recognize the impact of those proposals on

         18  the flexibility of the Internet, its

         19  interoperability, and its ability to empower end

         20  users, to develop not just consume.

         21                 So, they're perfectly willing to lead

         22  legislators to support limited industry standards

         23  like IMS or anything that empowered network

         24  operators to inspect communications and determine

         25  themselves how flexible the Internet is.
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          2                 Now once you have the IP, Internet

          3  Protocol Platform, you have uniform treatment of

          4  packets, okay.  It just happens.

          5                 Now, what you really want is to be

          6  sure to establish a policy that ensures the

          7  broadband providers pull more wires through when New

          8  York City actually needs them.

          9                 The numerous comments that the

         10  spokesperson from the Free State Society mentioned,

         11  like Network Neutrality abuses don't exist or we

         12  have a competitive broadband environment, or that

         13  price flexibility is needed, broadband providers

         14  would not be able to price differentiate because it

         15  would result in increased cost for consumers.

         16                 The fundamental premise there is

         17  they're talking about competition among network

         18  providers for applications they control, and that's

         19  what all of the quality- of- service proposals so

         20  far broadly speaking do.  They are not talking about

         21  end user application competition, which is what the

         22  Internet is fundamentally.

         23                 Now, in order to address the

         24  deceptively plausible notion that are packaged with

         25  the notion of quality- of- service, there's at least
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          2  one or two good versions of quality- of- service,

          3  I'll grant that, but broadly speaking, it's a very

          4  deceptive thing.

          5                 In order to address the deceptively

          6  plausible notion that are packaged by the notion of

          7  quality- of- service, and the idea of price

          8  differentiation among applications and services

          9  offered by network providers, you should make a

         10  specific point of mentioning flexibility as the

         11  advantage of the Internet, and also the standards

         12  that empower end users, okay?

         13                 Your Resolution Number 712 would be

         14  much improved if you, for instance, revised the

         15  first paragraph to say, "Whereas, Network Neutrality

         16  had been defined as the principle of an open, and

         17  free, and flexible Internet that fosters competition

         18  and innovation among service and content providers,

         19  and offers consumers access to an opportunity to

         20  design and offer applications of their choice."

         21                 Okay, that's the most effective thing

         22  you can do.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Mr. Breitbart, I have a question

          3  which is that I think you have a very good point

          4  knowing many people who use the, either some kind of

          5  IM or some kind of cell phone, as you suggested, and

          6  I'm just wondering when you are making those

          7  comments, are you making the same comments to

          8  Congress, or to the people in FCC?

          9                 Obviously, we heard testimony today

         10  that the definition should be expanded, we're not

         11  talking just about the traditional Internet.

         12                 So, I'm just wondering if you or

         13  folks from the Coalition, anybody can answer that.

         14                 Cameron can answer that, is there

         15  some push for this type of communication?

         16                 MR. BREITBART:  Yes, I would say

         17  there's a  -- Skyaf (phonetic) actually filed a

         18  petition with the FCC, comments are as I said, due

         19  today, and it's  --  so that's basically the extent

         20  to which I'm commenting to the FCC on this

         21  proceeding. Right now I think that this issue with

         22  respect to cell phones is just receiving very little

         23  attention.

         24                 Net Neutrality is a much bigger

         25  issue, that's why I wanted to testify today to bring
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          2  it to your attention, and in terms of I mean,

          3  Cameron and I had this conversation just a couple of

          4  weeks ago.

          5                 So I do think that again, it is

          6  something that I am eager to speak to in any forum

          7  where we're allowed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Mr. Craig, do

          9  you want to comment on that also, sort of elaborate

         10  on what you said in terms of the need to expand the

         11  definition?

         12                 MR. CRAIG:  I think Josh really

         13  covered it as best as he could.

         14                 I think that  --  the only thing I

         15  didn't mention was, especially for those of us who

         16  are disabled, as you can see that I am, it's a lot

         17  easier to type a message just one- handed than if

         18  you have to get a computer terminal and hunt and

         19  peck.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you all

         21  very much.

         22                 Do you want to add anything, no,

         23  okay?

         24                 Thank you very much.  We look forward

         25  to more discussion.  Thank you.
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          2                 The next and last panel is Yossef

          3  Heskiel, Jay Sulzberger.  Those two are the last two

          4  who will be testifying.

          5                 Thank you, and feel free to come up.

          6                 MR. HESKIEL:  Good afternoon council

          7  members.

          8                 My name is Yossef Heskiel, and I'm

          9  the Director of Technology Services for the

         10  NonProfit Helpdesk.

         11                 The NonProfit Helpdesk has worked

         12  with over 750 nonprofit organizations in and around

         13  New York City, to improve their effectiveness,

         14  largely through the implementation of the most

         15  appropriate application of technology.

         16                 My experience prior to joining the

         17  NonProfit Helpdesk and during my work there, has had

         18  a heavy emphasis on cost effective and usable

         19  connectivity solutions.  This in our experience is a

         20  major issue for our nonprofit clients.

         21                 As a nonprofit technology solution

         22  provider, the NonProfit Helpdesk relies on the best

         23  that people have to offer at the lowest cost.

         24                 With the Internet now a major source

         25  for solutions, Network Neutrality is at the
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          2  forefront of our concerns.  Loss of Network

          3  Neutrality will impact thousands of organizations in

          4  and around New York City alone, not to mention the

          5  average home Internet user of which number in the

          6  millions in New York.

          7                 Two examples in which we would be

          8  negatively affected are as follows.

          9                 Firstly, ISP's intending to charge to

         10  allow resource traffic to flow on its network, may

         11  result in the resource not being available to

         12  consumers or organizations.  This could be a caused

         13  by higher charges to the consumer, or the inability

         14  of the resource provider to afford the cost.

         15                 I should mention by the way, as an

         16  aside, that also works in reverse, and it hasn't

         17  been brought up before, that Yahoo or Google or

         18  whatnot are so large that they may be able to charge

         19  ISP's to have their resource on their networks.

         20  It's not just that the ISP's are charging the

         21  resource.  It works in the reverse as well.

         22                 ISP's charging consumers to access

         23  various resources would create a wide menu of

         24  charges that the low- income resident or nonprofit

         25  organization cannot afford.  This would severely
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          2  limit their operational ability of providing

          3  services to the community.

          4                 Secondly, ISP's intending on

          5  prioritizing traffic for higher paying subscribers

          6  or not allowing access to specific traffic types

          7  unless a premium is paid will have a similar affect.

          8

          9                 For example as was brought up before,

         10  all the organizations and residents that use Voice

         11  Over IP service for its low costs will have to pay

         12  extra to have their voice communications either work

         13  as advertised or to work at all, as was one of the

         14  instances in which such discrimination had taken

         15  place.

         16                 These are only two such examples but

         17  each very important.

         18                 In this respect, my understanding is

         19  that the people and organizations that the NonProfit

         20  Helpdesk works with would all agree Network

         21  Neutrality must be maintained.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         24  much, as you know we're a big fan of the NonProfit

         25  Helpdesk.

                                                            90

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 So, thank you for coming here today.

          3                 Jay, go ahead.

          4                 MR. SULZBERGER:  My name is Jay

          5  Sulzberger, and I'm here as an individual.

          6                 I'm associated with various free

          7  software and free Internet groups, but this is just

          8  my personal estimate here.

          9                 Okay, in my testimony I try to

         10  explain what the Net is which most people don't

         11  know.  The Net was invented by thousands of people

         12  with government help, mainly military in the

         13  beginning.  They are the only people with enough

         14  imagination to go for such a thing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I think we know

         16  what it is here.

         17                 MR. SULZBERGER:  Well, I'll quickly

         18  get  --  may I?

         19                 The cable company and the telephone

         20  company did not invent e- mail.  They did not invent

         21  the World Wide Web.  They did not invent

         22  transmission writing on top of the Internet of

         23  videos.  They did not invent the large search

         24  engines that we all use today.  They did not invent

         25  SSH.  They did not invent VPN's. They did not invent
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          2  UseNet.

          3                 Now, the major confusion  --  one of

          4  the major confusions I've heard at this discussion

          5  and many others, is that somehow they provide these

          6  things.

          7                 Not only do they not provide these

          8  things, but it was only  --  when they figured out

          9  what they were by force of law, they were required

         10  to allow them, in 1990 NYNEX tried to stop people

         11  from sending noises over their telephone lines if

         12  they came from computers, or charge them a lot

         13  extra.

         14                 This is the heart of the issue of

         15  Network Neutrality.

         16                 The people who transport our

         17  communications are not attempting to say they get to

         18  look at our communications, break out some of them,

         19  and treat them differently because they might have a

         20  competing one, such as VOIT.

         21                 Now I'd like to address two more

         22  things, and then I'll keep quiet.

         23                 It's often claimed that there's no

         24  examples, this has become accepted even among pro-

         25  Network Neutrality people. But there are very few
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          2  examples of gross violations of Network Neutrality.

          3  Of course, this isn't true at all.

          4                 One of them that might be considered

          5  mild is that you're not allowed to open Port 80 for

          6  incoming traffic.  Port 80 is the conventional

          7  traffic for running a, so called, web server. That's

          8  ridiculous.

          9                 You're also not allowed to run your

         10  own e- mail thing.

         11                 Now let me state that this does not

         12  directly have to do with the issues of spam.  There

         13  are issues, just as free speech is limited by our

         14  right to sleep at night, and not have our ears bleed

         15  because somebody has a big, noisy boom- box in their

         16  car that runs at 10,000 watts.  Okay, so already

         17  there are violations.

         18                 Rodgers Internet up in Canada, it has

         19  recently been revealed, slows all packets that are

         20  encryptive (sic).  They look inside the packet.

         21  That means e- mails.  Some people encrypt their e-

         22  mail, and it slows that down.

         23                 Satellite people don't allow VPN's.

         24  That is a violation of Network Neutrality so

         25  stupendous, and all violations of Network Neutrality
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          2  that people are afraid of are of that type. The

          3  lower- level carriers will grab hold of things not

          4  invented by them, not deployed by them, and they

          5  insist that you use theirs or they charge extra.

          6                 Now, we come to quality- of- service

          7  and paying for wiring up the City.

          8                 Professor Schulzrinne had mentioned

          9  the facts, I'm going to repeat them, about quality-

         10  of- service.  For fiber, quality- of- service can

         11  make a difference under the following conditions.

         12  You have exactly enough bandwidth to carry video

         13  streams to your house, plus e- mail.  You have

         14  exactly enough.  In that case it would sometimes be

         15  the case that if you treated all the packets

         16  equally, your video would jitter.  Then quality- of

         17  service would help get your video to you so it

         18  doesn't jitter, and your e- mail will run fine.

         19  That's the only circumstance, and this is related to

         20  what Seth said.  They desperately want to keep the

         21  bandwidth low because then they could say, "Oh, we

         22  have to manage it, and charge you separately for

         23  transporting your videos because after all otherwise

         24  it won't work."  No the real answer, as Internet II,

         25  and Professor Schulzrinne I hope writes more on
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          2  this.  They're claiming they have to be given

          3  special privileges in order to add enough fiber.

          4  Under no circumstances, if they're granted

          5  permission to discriminate they way they want to,

          6  will they pull enough fiber because then it will

          7  become obvious they don't have to discriminate.

          8  That's the lesson of Internet II, and that's it.

          9                 New York City has a chance to act

         10  directly.  That testimony is something for the FTC.

         11  I will send you things more specifically dealing,

         12  and I hope to speak to the broadband issue in

         13  general.

         14                 That's it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 I have a question, Yossef, regarding

         18  the work that you do at the NonProfit Helpdesk,

         19  which is how do you go about dealing with this issue

         20  of education?

         21                 Because obviously, you guys are very

         22  familiar with what opportunities are out there, and

         23  the costs, and the connectivity, and the speed and

         24  so on.

         25                 So, how do you go about educating
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          2  your customers in terms of the nonprofit community?

          3                 MR. HESKIEL:  That's actually a very

          4  good question because one of the services that we

          5  provide to our clients is locating and obtaining the

          6  best broadband solutions that are available to them.

          7    Sometimes not at all, sometimes we find that

          8  they're either grossly overpaying for decent

          9  broadband services, in other cases it's the regular

         10  training of what to do with the Internet, and how to

         11  obtain what they need to obtain to do their job

         12  properly.

         13                 But, I'm not sure if that completely

         14  answers your question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Well because

         16  obviously, as we had discussed earlier, is there

         17  competition or not, is there a broader definition of

         18  the Internet, you know, I'm just trying  to get you

         19  to talk about ways in which there is or isn't

         20  competition in today's world?

         21                 MR. HESKIEL:  There are in some

         22  places no competition.

         23                 I have for example, two organizations

         24  in particular, one was not able to get a connection

         25  other than dial up for the longest time, until
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          2  another business in the area had requested T1

          3  services.  They were able to get the T1 service.

          4  There was no DSL, there was no cable, satellite was

          5  obviously not a problem, but very inefficient, and

          6  the other location  --  they are actually located in

          7  the Bronx, and being that you recently had the

          8  broadband initiative meeting, they have a connection

          9  now but they would be lucky if another provider

         10  would give them a connection, and we have tried to

         11  locate something that was more reliable, something

         12  that would service them better with no avail.      So

         13  , in terms of competition I can's say that there is

         14  any competition for a lot of organizations.  Even if

         15  there was competition, all the providers in the

         16  areas, if you go let's say to Verizon or whatnot, if

         17  you want DSL most often you're going to get it

         18  through Verizon.  It doesn't matter really who's

         19  selling it, the ultimate point is that it comes from

         20  Verizon or say CoVad (phonetic).  They lease some of

         21  the lines, but when it comes down to it, it's one

         22  company in the background.  Or with a cable

         23  providers you have Cablevision in your area.

         24                 So, each of those providers still

         25  limit what you can do with their service, as the
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          2  gentlemen mentioned earlier about the web server or

          3  whatnot.  There are limitations with each of the

          4  services.

          5                 Going back to what some other speaker

          6  mentioned about bandwidth or latency, there is an

          7  issue with latency all over the place, but the truth

          8  is, there is the wires there for the capacity.

          9                 When you had the broadband issue,

         10  there was a gentlemen that came and showed the kind

         11  of fiber that they can lay or the kind of capacity

         12  that is available in other countries. It's there,

         13  but letting it out means they loose money.

         14                 So in terms of the meaning of the

         15  Neutrality, it has to be very flexible, very

         16  flexible.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I want to thank

         18  you both for joining us here today, and although

         19  this hearing is concluded, I think what we have to

         20  look at is to take all of the suggestions that were

         21  made today, perhaps change the resolution a bit, but

         22  it is certainly our position that we feel very

         23  strongly that given the current atmosphere which

         24  technology is moving forward, it has to be kept

         25  open, and it has to, I think Professor Wu perhaps
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          2  said it best when he talked about not having any

          3  gatekeepers the will close the hole and make it even

          4  more expensive, complicated, and difficult to

          5  access.

          6                 I think what has been interesting to

          7  me is that just across the City it's a challenge,

          8  even without any policy along these lines, to keep

          9  everything open to the entire City.

         10                 So, we're looking forward to an

         11  ongoing discussion, hopefully pass this resolution

         12  at the next meeting. We look forward to your input.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. HESKIEL:  Thanks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We also want to

         16  just indicate for the record that Craig Newmark,

         17  head of Craigslist, has submitted testimony for the

         18  record.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 Thank you all.

         21                 This hearing is concluded.

         22                 (Hearing concluded 2:45 p.m.)

         23

         24  Written testimony read into the record:

         25  Testimony submitted by:  Craig Newmark, Founder of
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          2  Craigslist

          3                 Most Americans believe that if you

          4  play fair and work hard, you'll get ahead.  But this

          5  notion is threatened by legislation passed Thursday

          6  night by the U.S. House of Representatives that

          7  would allow Internet service providers to play

          8  favorites among different web sites.

          9                 Here's a real world example that

         10  shows how this would work.  Let's say you call Joe's

         11  Pizza and the first thing you hear is a message

         12  saying you'll be connected in a minute or two, but

         13  if you want, you can be connected to Pizza Hut right

         14  away.  That's not fair, right?  You called Joe's and

         15  want some Joe's pizza.

         16                 Well, that's how some

         17  telecommunications executives want the Internet to

         18  operate, with some web sites easier to access than

         19  others.  For them, this would be a money making

         20  regime.

         21                 Next stop is the Senate.  If this

         22  becomes law, your Yahoo Inc. E-mail account could

         23  operate more slowly, unless Yahoo ponies up big

         24  bucks to the major telecommunications companies that

         25  bring the Internet into your home.  By the same
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          2  token, your craigslist classifieds, (I'm the Craig

          3  from craigslist) could grind to a halt, unless my

          4  company pays up. This is not fair.

          5                 Telecommunications companies already

          6  control the pipes that carry the Internet into your

          7  home.  Now they want control which sites you visit

          8  and how you experience them.  They would provide

          9  privilege access for themselves and their preferred

         10  partners while charging other businesses for varying

         11  levels of service.

         12                 But why change a good thing?  Right

         13  now, the Internet is a level playing field for

         14  everyone.  The wonky term for this is "Net

         15  Neutrality."  When the Internet is neutral, everyone

         16  can use it, just like everyone can use public roads

         17  or airwaves.  All businesses on the Internet get an

         18  equal shot at success.

         19                 Here's how Susan Crawford, a

         20  professor of cyberlaw and intellectual property at

         21  Benjamin N. Cardozo School of Law in New York City,

         22  puts it.  "Think of the pipes and wires that you use

         23  to go on- line as a sidewalk.  The question is

         24  whether the sidewalk should get a cut of the value

         25  of the conversation that you have as you walk along?
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          2    The traditional telephone model has been that the

          3  telephone company doesn't get paid more if you have

          4  a particularly meaningful call.  They're just

          5  providing a neutral pipe."

          6                 That's the gist of the issue.  The

          7  telecom executives tell us that they can be trusted

          8  to play fair to let all companies, and not just

          9  their paying partners, be equally accessible from

         10  homes everywhere.  But some of these executives have

         11  admitted that they intend to cheat.

         12                 William L. Smith, the chief

         13  technology officer for Atlanta- based BellSouth

         14  Corp., recently told the Washington Post that

         15  BellSouth should, for example, be able to charge

         16  Yahoo Inc. For the opportunity to have its search

         17  site load faster than that of Google Inc. or vice

         18  versa.  "If I go to the airport, I can buy a coach

         19  standby ticket or a first- class ticket," Smith

         20  said.  "In the shipping business, I can get two- day

         21  air or six- day ground."

         22                 In my view, executives like Smith

         23  forget that they get the use of public resources,

         24  like the airwaves and public rights- of- way, on

         25  which they have built their businesses and made a
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          2  lot of money.  As such, they shouldn't be able to

          3  squeeze out some web sites in favor of others.  This

          4  would be a betrayal of the public trust.

          5                 You, the consumer, should be able to

          6  choose which sites you want to visit without the

          7  telecommunications companies interfering.  What it

          8  really comes down to is this.  The

          9  telecommunications executives say we should trust

         10  them to provide a level playing field of service,

         11  but can they be trusted to play fair?

         12                 You already know the answer.  If not,

         13  ask your repair guy why he didn't show up when

         14  promised or consider why the telecom companies block

         15  some high- tech services from reaching you cell

         16  phone as their own services flourish, as reported

         17  recently external link by Walter Mossberg in the

         18  Wall Street Journal.  Or how about the fake grass-

         19  roots web sites, such as Hands off the

         20  Internetexternal link, the telecom industry has set

         21  up to support its cause?  Is that the height of

         22  honesty?

         23                 It seems to me that many telecom

         24  execs have a deep investment in "truthiness," where

         25  they make claims about this or that thing without
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          2  bothering to support those claims with facts.

          3  Perhaps the clearest example of this behavior is

          4  when they say that keeping the Net neutral, as it is

          5  now, involves more government intervention and

          6  regulation, when really the opposite is true.

          7                 (Originally appeared on CNN.com,

          8  October 20, 2006)

          9                 What if they gagged Gutenberg?  Big

         10  telecom is trying to throttle free access to

         11  democratic Internet.

         12                 Five- hundred years ago, we had

         13  Johann Gutenberg, a German metalworker and inventor

         14  who pioneered the precursor to the Internet.  His

         15  printing press became the first practical mass

         16  communications medium utilizing what was then an

         17  advanced memory technology; paper.

         18                 Soon after, there was Martin Luther,

         19  a German theologian and priest who fervently

         20  believed the church had departed from the teaching

         21  of the Bible.  In 1517, Luther began printing

         22  pamphlets condemning the church, and within several

         23  months his 95 Theses was being read all over Europe.

         24                 Before Gutenberg and Luther, power

         25  had been concentrated in very few hands.  Now,
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          2  because of Gutenberg's invention, it was flowing to

          3  larger numbers of people.

          4                 As my friend Wendy Beck, who teaches

          5  writing at Lowell High School in San Francisco

          6  points out, pamphlets might be considered the first

          7   "plogs," or printed blogs.

          8                 Printed ideas soon spread like the

          9  plague, or virally, to use current marketing jargon.

         10    In the 1680's, John Locke helped catalyze

         11  Britain's Glorious Revolution, using his printed

         12  manifesto Two Treatises of Government to advocate

         13  for citizens' right and a greater degree of power

         14  sharing.

         15                 Later, in North America, Thomas Paine

         16  used the press to inspire the American Revolution.

         17  His widely disseminated 1776 pamphlet, Common Sense,

         18  persuaded many Americans to denounce British rule.

         19                 People like Paine have helped

         20  preserve democracy in the U.S. through the years.

         21                 However, the powerful still control

         22  most forms of mass communication, and it hasn't been

         23  in their interest to speak truth to power.

         24                 Now however, we've got this Internet

         25  thing, which is different from any previous form of
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          2  mass communication because:  1.  It provides two-

          3  way communications in many forms, including

          4  discussion boards and wikis (a wiki is a piece of

          5  server software that allows people to freely create

          6  and edit web pages); 2.  The barrier to entry is

          7  very small, you can run your own site or blog or

          8  post messages on the Internet in an organized way,

          9  and these tools require no significant technical

         10  knowledge.

         11                 Several years ago, people like Joe

         12  Trippi and Zephyr Teachout, who served respectively,

         13  as campaign manager and chief of on- line operations

         14  for Howard Dean's 2004 run for president, began

         15  using the Internet for political organizing and

         16  fundraising.  They made great use of e- mail list

         17  servers, discussion boards and Meetup.com, a site

         18  that helps strangers with similar interests to meet

         19  in person.  A lot of other folks noticed this, and

         20  now political campaigning is increasingly Internet-

         21  based.  Political campaigning will never be the

         22  same.

         23                 The Internet allows everyday people

         24  to seek to affect American politics from the bottom

         25  up.  They include Glenn Reynolds, who is
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          2  libertarian- identified and blogs on his site

          3  Instapundit.com.  Reynolds has published the book

          4   "An Army of Davids:  How Markets and Technology

          5  Empower Ordinary People to Beat Big Media, Big

          6  Government, and Other Goliaths," which documents how

          7  the Internet is creating a new entrepreneurial

          8  class, and covers other history- altering technology

          9  trends, such as biotech, genomics and nanotech.

         10                 We also have Jerome Armstrong, who

         11  comments on Democratic Party politics on MyDD.com.

         12  Now he's involved with the Mark Warner political

         13  action committee, helping the former Virginia

         14  governor with a possible presidential run.  Also in

         15  the Democratic camp is Markos Moulitses Zuniga, who

         16  runs the Daily Kos, dailykos.com, a site where

         17  hundreds of thousands of people congregate to

         18  critique the Democratic Party and discuss how to

         19  change it from within.  Markos and Jerome have

         20  published "Crashing the Gate:  Netroots, Grassroots,

         21  and the Rise of People- Powered Politics," a book

         22  that hails the birth of a new movement fueled by

         23  advances in technology, and a hunger for a more

         24  authentic democracy.

         25                 These guys have a serious
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          2  disagreements, but they're deeply involved in the

          3  use of the Internet to redistribute power.  Their

          4  books document this redistribution process as it's

          5  happening, and by doing so, help make it happen.

          6                 There are other Internet- related

          7  trends worth citing.  There's Wikipedia, a free on-

          8  line encyclopedia collaboratively written by

          9  volunteers that has become the standard reference

         10  for tens of millions of people.  It used to be that

         11  the victors wrote the history books, now everyone

         12  has a shot.

         13                 And in late April, the Center for

         14  Media and Democracy launched Congresspedia, which

         15  allows anyone with the time, interest and an

         16  Internet connection to look up the names of

         17  congressmen and senators and discover who is giving

         18  them money. It'll be interesting to see what happens

         19  when folks at "The Daily Show" start posting

         20  Congresspedia's exposes, for example, showing the

         21  antics of Senator Ted Stevens, R- Alaska.

         22                 I prefer to affect a fashionable

         23  cynicism, but it really looks like we're at an

         24  historical turning point, much like the time of the

         25  invention of the printing press.  Things are
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          2  changing at an accelerated rate, facilitated by the

          3  democratization of power provided by the Internet.

          4                 But this trajectory could get

          5  derailed by the federal government as a few people

          6  representing big telecoms fight the free and open

          7  access of the Internet.  Right now, the Net is open

          8  to everyone, as democratic a platform as any.  But

          9  on Thursday, the House of Representatives voted

         10  overwhelmingly to grant big telecoms the ability to

         11  provide privileged access to the already powerful.

         12                 Imagine if the leaders of 16th

         13  Century Germany, feeling threatened by the

         14  democratizing forces of the printing press, had

         15  taken Gutenberg's invention and limited its use to

         16  those they politically agreed with, or if Luther had

         17  to pay licensing fees for nailing up his 95 Theses

         18  on every church door in Germany.

         19                 That's what big telecom is trying to

         20  do:  Shut the democratic architecture of the

         21  Internet.  By creating two "tiers," one that is fast

         22  and charges fees to web site owners, and a second

         23  class Web that is cheaper and slower, and could

         24  limit access to independently run sites, big telecom

         25  is hoping to make a larger profit off the Internet.
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          2                 In other words, opponents to the

          3  Internet's open and free access are trying to change

          4  the rules, and they're trying to mislead you,

          5  claiming that they're against regulation, and that

          6  they only want you to pay for the rising cost of

          7  their "pipes."  That's information warfare.

          8                 Democracy relies on the honest

          9  exchange of information.  We now have a rare

         10  opportunity to better control our own lives, and to

         11  demand an increasingly lean government. Only a few

         12  of us will speak truth to power, but a lot more of

         13  us need to get behind those who do.

         14                 So start reading; political web

         15  sites, books, plogs, whatever, and lend your voice

         16  to those you deem worthy. Then vote and speak your

         17  truth to power.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 3:44 p.m.)
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